Sl

UNIVERSAL HEALTH INTERNATIONAL GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
AEEBRBREEZERER A A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability i B B B B 5k it B 3 2 A R A 7))
Stock Code B3 fUH%: 2211

(O
%’
Retail
Z2E

st

| -
0.
\o R R

PLATFORM+ L Je— O INTERNET+
Fae Tl? B4+

R 7' SPECIALIZATION+
HE.,

4 N

Distribution

Pk



57 Y8 CONTENTS
sPECiALZATION: = ﬁ

w4
Page
Bk
Company Profile 2
NSITSE
Corporate Information 4
NRER
Financial Highlights 6
MsHE
Chairman’s Statement 8
FRWmE
Management Discussion and Analysis e
BEE R RS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 28
BB g kERRE
Report of the Directors 49
EEgWmE
Corporate Governance Report 71
hEERRE
Directors and Senior Management 93
EEREREEE
Independent Auditor’s Report 103
B AZ BRI S
Consolidated Balance Sheet 117
afEERER
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 119
aftirelamk
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
aftERZEER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
AHRERER
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ;
SO SRR A IR

Financial Summary

MBARBE




COMPANY PROFILE
AR N

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (Stock code:
2211) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) aims at
huge market opportunities in the universal health industry, strives
to be international brand operator of universal health and become
a leading practitioner of the strategy of “Internet + Universal
Health” as well as a pioneer of the development of ecology in
the industry chain by way of finance and capital.

The Company is one of the leading pharmaceutical retailers and
distributors in the Northeast of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC" or “China”). The Group has distinguished pharmaceutical
retail chain network in the Northeast China and it is also the largest
privately operated pharmaceutical distributor in the Northeast
China. As of the date of this annual report, the Group operated
845 retail pharmacies, mainly located in the Northeast China, and
had approximately 2,270 active distributors and 5,586 full-time
staff. In addition, the Group has set up five large-scale logistics
storage centers in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin and
Jiamusi, and has established a high- quality distribution system
across the country and covering the northeastern region of the
PRC.

As a basic business segment, the Group’s main product categories
for pharmaceutical retail and distribution (including import and
export trade) include prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs
(Chinese patent medicines, chemical preparations, antibiotics
and biochemical drugs), traditional Chinese medicine decoction
pieces, biological products, protein assimilation preparations,
peptide hormones, blood products, disinfection products, medical
equipment, family planning supplies (contraceptives and utensils),
prepackaged foods, dairy products (including infant formula milk
powder), nutritional foods, health care products, stereotyped
packaging cosmetics, daily necessities, etc.
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The Group will continue leveraging on the core advantages
of branded products, expanding the scope of cooperation on
branded products, leveraging on business institute training, and
providing more value-added service to employees, customers
and consumers. The Group also enriches the product mix by
introducing more health care products based on the expertise in
pharmaceutical retail and distribution, so as to promote the concept
of the universal health industry. Meanwhile, the Group actively
explores upstream ecological chain, covering the construction for
Chinese herbal medicines base and the production of botanical
capsule.

The Group actively explores online pharmacies, cross-border
e-commerce, Influencer marketing and other “Internet™” areas,
and advocates the concept of “Specialization®” and introduces
the development concept of “Platform*”. Furthermore, the Group
maintains upstream and downstream ecosystem leveraging on
industry advantage to cope with the situation of “New Norm” in
real economy, and takes the lead in upgrading and digitalized
transformation of the industry.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman)
(Resigned as chief executive officer on 1 August 2021)
Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman)
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Appointed as executive director,
chief executive officer and chief operation officer on
1 August 2021)
Mr. Zhao Zehua
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned as executive director on
1 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zou Haiyan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (Chairman)
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Jin Dongkun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman)

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing

Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Ge Junming

Mr. Zhao Zehua

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming

REGISTERED OFFICE

PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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HEADQUARTERS

No. 14-1

Bei Yi Zhong Road
Tiexi District

Shenyang City
Liaoning Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

2404, 24th Floor
World-Wide House

19 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall
Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited

STOCK CODE

The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited: 2211

INVESTOR RELATIONS

ir@uhi-group.com

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.uhighl.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBEEE

For the year ended 30 June
BENA=THLEE

Unit 2021 2020 Change

Efiy —E--F ZTZTHF 28

Revenue Wz RMB million 1,185.2 1,510.1 -21.5%
AREEHET

Gross profit EHH RMB million 156.9 188.5 -16.8%
ARBEEET

Operating loss mE BB RMB million (663.4) (510.5) -152.9 RMB million

ARBEET ARBBET

Loss for the year FEEHE RMB million (676.0) (493.5) -182.5 RMB million

AREEET ARBEER

EBITDA! BB EREHEAFED RMB million (335.9) (455.0)  119.1 RMB million

AREHET ARBBET

(Restated)
(45 E7))

Basic loss per share? FREXEREY RMB cents (174.83) (127.45)  -47.38 RMB cents

AR#S ARES

Gross margin EFE % 13.2 12.5 +0.7 pp

(EIER

Operating loss margin BEBEE % (56.0) (33.8) -22.2 pp

(EER

Net loss margin FEEX % (57.0) (32.7) 243 pp

(BT

As at 30 June
RAR=tH
Unit 2021 2020 Change
Eil —E--& —ZE-% 2

Current ratio® mENL O times 1.3 28 -1.5
&

Trade receivables turnover® LGS EEPS G days 30.3 38.9 -8.6
x

Inventory turnover® FRABXRYO days 103.8 84.9 +18.9
X

Trade payables turnover® ERERREERE days 68.3 395 +28.8
X

Return on equity"” AR % (117.5) (39.5) -78.0 pp

EER

Return on total assets® EEBEDREO % (70.6) (33.0) -37.6 pp

EERE
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EBITDA is calculated by adjusting loss before interests, tax, depreciation and amortisation,
excluding the effect of share of post-tax results of joint ventures, share of post-tax results
of an associate, impairment loss or, if applicable, its reversal on intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment in an associate.

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2021 was 386,313,445,
versus 385,561,300 for the year ended 30 June 2020).

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

Trade receivables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and
ending balances on trade receivables for the year, divided by revenue for the year,
multiplied by the number of days for the year.

Inventory turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on inventory for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied by
the number of days for the year.

Trade payables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on trade payables for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied
by the number of days for the year.

Return on equity is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company by
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing loss for the year by total assets.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIE®mE

Focus, concentrate on universal health
BE BEIFARRBE

Live broadcast, new channel experience
B REHER

Dear Shareholders,

I, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, am glad to express my sincere gratitude to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and all who give
strong support, understanding and encouragement to the Company. |
would like to take this opportunity to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2021 (the “Year”).

EHNEMRR :
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®|E

MACRO ENVIRONMENT

The year 2021 marks the first year of the implementation of the
"14th Five-Year Plan” of China, and is a new strategic starting point
for the “Two Centenaries (M{E— B 5)". Under the “Outline of the
14th Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social Development
of the People’s Republic of China and the Long-Range Objectives
Through the Year 2035”, China has made strategic deployment
for the construction of “Healthy China” and the response to the
trend of aging. In this regard, new situations are brewing in medical
service, scientific and technological innovation, universal health,
major consumption and other aspects, and the universal health
industry will usher in new development opportunities.

Although the novel coronavirus disease 2019 (the “COVID-19")
epidemic (the "Epidemic”) has posed a severe blow to the global
economy, it has led to the rise of the new business model in
pharmaceutical industry and the increase in its concentration,
and has an impact on international industrial transfer, vaccine,
prevention and control, and accelerated development of testing
related industries. With the promotion of COVID-19 vaccination,
the world economy has gradually restarted and recovered. The
International Monetary Fund (IMF) predicts that the global economy
is expected to grow by 6%, developed economies by 5.1%, and
emerging markets and developing economies by 6.7% in 2021.
Affected by the uneven distribution of vaccines in the world, the
global economic recovery is still uncertain.

China’s economy still shows high resilience. Confronting the
Epidemic between winter and spring and the uncertainty of
the external environment, all regions and departments in China
conscientiously implemented the decision-making arrangements
of the CPC Central Committee and the State Council, consolidated
and expanded the achievements of Epidemic containment and
economic and social development, scientifically and accurately
implemented macro policies, and the economic operation gained
steady growth, with excellent economic performance in the first
half of 2021.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Under the Epidemic, the Company's business developed
steadily. Among several major business segments of the
Group, pharmaceutical chain and pharmaceutical wholesale
have restrained the sharp decline. The capsule manufacturers,
however, have been greatly affected by the second waive of the
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Epidemic, and the benefits are less than expected. The Company
launched online publicity and marketing on the mobile Internet,
and initiated marketing by Internet celebrities, online pharmacies
and cooperation with third-party online service organizations in
some areas in advance, thereby laying a business foundation for
the country to further open up the new trend of online retailing,
and providing basic support for the Company to explore the
supply-side strategic transformation. The Company'’s total revenue
for the Year was RMB1,185.2 million.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

With the launch of the “14th Five-Year Plan” of China, the constant
advancement of medical reform and the evolution of the global
aging, China’s basic investment in the field of wellness will continue
to increase, and the living standards of residents will improve
in a steady manner. In addition, with people's wellness being
enhanced and the consumption in the pharmaceutical field being
a rigid demand, the pharmaceutical industry still has increasing
expectations.

Also, the fast growth of China’s network economy has brought
great room for reform to the pharmaceutical retail industry. The
increasing concentration of physical stores and the increasing
online share will bring new challenges and opportunities for the
Company's operations. The Company will seize the momentum,
cultivate talents and reach new growth poles.

The Group continues to follow the existing development strategies,
focus on the pharmaceutical industry, and concentrate on the
universal health field. It will take internal and external factors as the
point of departure to actively respond to the adverse situation. The
first is to improve the operational quality of retail chain stores and
strengthen medical service capabilities; the second is to expand
the value-added service items of stores to meet various needs of
consumers; and the third is to vigorously strengthen the linking
capability of Internet to physical stores to promote the online and
offline connectivity and integration. At the same time, through
the optimization and adjustment of the regional layout of the
chain system and distribution system, resources will be gathered
in regions with advantages, and continuous competitiveness will
be formed through innovation and cooperation.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®|E

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Chinese government has determined the timetable for
"carbon peak" in 2030 and "carbon neutralization" in 2060. “Lucid
waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets” has become
an important concept in China’s environmental protection and
sustainable economic development, which embodies the dialectical
relationship between environment and economy. The environment,
society and governance are also the basis for the Group to develop
in a sustainable way and perform social responsibility, and are
taken seriously by senior management. We will make efforts in
aspects such as environment, employees, customers, supply chain,
anti-corruption and even community participation, while creating
economic value for each stakeholder, to both improve governance
and take into account the maintenance of the natural environment
and the social competitive environment, so as to adapt to the
global trend of coordinated economic and social development.

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude
to the Board, management members and all staff for their
dedication and support to our Group's strategies and business
development.

Jin Dongtao
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 September 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCU_SéION AND ANALYSIS

EREENWE DN

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Epidemic has significantly impacted on global economy,
including the pharmaceutical industry. However, in fact, China’s
pharmaceutical market maintained a growth rate faster than that
of the global market prior to the Epidemic. From 2016 to 2020,
the market size of China’'s pharmaceutical industry increased
from RMB1,329.4 billion to RMB1,791.9 billion. Due to the
effective control of the Epidemic in China, its pharmaceutical
industry has gradually recovered since the second quarter of
2020. The market prosperity and profitability have steadily
improved. Benefiting from the accelerated aging population
worldwide and the increasing health awareness of the general
public, it is expected that the medical industry characterized
by inelastic demand will gradually recover, at least, to the
level before the Epidemic. According to the forecast of AskCl
Consulting Co., Ltd. (FREEEZ%Fr), China’s pharmaceutical
market will continue to grow in 2021, and the market size of
China’ s pharmaceutical industry will reach RMB1,885.8 billion in
2021.

THEME
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

According to data from the National Bureau of Statistics, as of
May 2021, the pharmaceutical manufacturing industry realized a
cumulative operating income of RMB1,116.23 billion, a year-on-
year increase of 27.6%; and cumulative profit of RMB224.48 billion
in total, a year-on-year increase of 81.7%. The pharmaceutical
manufacturing industry maintained stable as a whole. In the first
half of 2020, affected by the Epidemic, the revenue and profit
declined slightly year-on-year, and grew after the third quarter,
with the profit recovering faster than the revenue.

In terms of retail pharmacies, the market size has increased
steadily and the industry has continued to concentrate. Leading
pharmacies are expected to grow vigorously through internal and
external means. In the long run, the trend of prescription outflow
will bring more room for the retail pharmacy industry to develop.
The consumption of traditional Chinese medicines remains policy-
immunized. Enterprises engaged in traditional Chinese medicine
consumption have strong variety and brand strength, thereby
having a long-term space for both quantity and price to rise.

In terms of policies, China’'s medical reform has now entered
a new era. Policies regarding bulk purchases of chemical and
generic drugs, centralized purchases of high-priced consumables,
and negotiation on medical insurance catalogue are advanced
consistently. The progress and intensity of such policies exceed
expectations. The central idea of this round of medical reform is
to encourage innovation, improve the quality of medicines and
equipment, and transform unreasonable expenditures on medical

insurance into effective ones.
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In recent years, the State has paid more and more attention to
the burden of medical expenses, and has introduced policies
to reduce the burden of medicines and increase people’s
livelihood and well-being. On 15 January 2021, the State Council
executive meeting once again focused on the drug issues.
This meeting required that in accordance with the medical
reform deployment, adhere to the three-medicine linkage, and
promote the normalization and institutionalization of centralized
drug procurement. The promotion of this measure will squeeze
out the earnings in the purchase of medicines. On the one
hand, it is necessary to select pharmaceutical companies, drugs
and consumables through fair competition in quality and price,
so that medical institutions can ensure that the selected drugs
are used first, and the purchase volume should be increased as
much as possible according to demand. On the other hand, it
is necessary to strengthen the supervision of the entire chain
of drug production, circulation and use. As a pharmaceutical
company, it is necessary to promote product innovation and
upgrade, improve drug efficiency, and benefit patients, drug
reform “reduces burden”, and health dividend “benefits
people’s livelihood”.

According to the trend, the prospects of the pharmaceutical
industry are promising as in recent years, China has
implemented the China's new fertility policy, aging of the
population structure has accelerated, the economy has grown
sustainably, the per capita disposable income has been
increasing, and people have improved their health concepts.
On the other hand, China’s pharmaceutical industry still faces
many challenges such as pressure of transformation, intensified
international homogeneous competition, and insufficient
innovation and R&D capabilities.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Under the leadership of Mr. Jin Dongtao, the chairman (the
“Chairman”) of the Board, and with the efforts of all employees,
the Group anchors in and focuses on the pharmaceutical
healthcare field, and has been actively promoting the
development of traditional physical retail chain stores and
distribution network while facing more intensive competition.
Therefore, the Group has to look for new opportunities and
explore new way of business and will make efforts in costs
reduction and control in coming years. The employees of
the Group's retail chain stores stand fast on their posts to
provide medicine sales services to local people. In some areas,
telephone ordering for home delivery of medicine and/or
mobile internet reservation for products were carried out to
maintain business continuity and form a complementary online
and offline operation model.

The Golden Rules (£ & &)

The Golden Rules, an operation philosophy with strategic vision,
is put forward by Mr. Jin Dongtao, the Chairman, of which “£”
is embodied as “1+1=1, 1+1=11, 1+1=101, 1+1==%, 1+1=H".
The Golden Rules advocates “Team-work” cooperation spirit,
"Platform” for multilateral cooperation, “Empathy” at multi-level
and multi-dimension, “Sharing” win-win cooperation strategy and
“Partnership” of seeking common development.

Chain Retail Business

During the Year, in order to minimise the impact on
performance caused by the Epidemic, the Group had started to
change its pricing strategies with a view to maintaining earnings
of the Group. In the meantime, the Group has strengthened
the construction of its O20 platform and formed an online
and offline interactive operation system. At the end of the
Year, the Group had a total of 845 chain stores (2020: 849
stores). However, the Group's retail business is still suffering
from the continuous downturn of regional real economy within
the northeastern region of the PRC and the impact of the
Epidemic. The Group recorded sales revenue for retail business
of RMB519.8 million for the Year (2020: RMB714.4 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 27.2%.
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Nationwide Distribution Business

During the Year, the Group has approximately 2,270 distribution
customers and 5 large-scale distribution logistics centers. The
Group made appropriate promotion in its distribution system,
continued to optimise screening and maintaining of high-
quality customers. However, in this circumstance, the Group's
distribution business recorded sales revenue of RMB665.4
million (2020: RMB795.7 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 16.4%.

Direct-supply and Sales Model

The Group's direct-supply model effectively addressed the
issue of traditional heavily overlapped sales process, as well
as simplified the supply chain to improve sales efficiency and
profitability and provided a higher profit margin from the high-
margin products of the Group. Meanwhile, the marketing model
advanced to accord with the “Two Invoices System” carried
out by the Chinese government so as to reduce the effect of
the policy change of the Group. During the Year, the Group's
management took all necessary actions to safeguard the
direct supply of branded products, and its direct-supply model
covered 29 provinces in China.

Branded Products Operation

The Group continued to maintain the operational pattern of
the original branded products and adjusted the brand structure
according to actual operational requirements to eliminate certain
non-applicable products and add new products, so as to maintain
the competitiveness of the original branded products, on the other
hand, increase the influence of new branded products. During the
Year, a net increase of 2 branded products was recorded. Hence,
there were 679 branded products in total in operation for the
benefit of the Group at the end of the Year.
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Intelligent Warehouse Construction

The Group has set up five large-scale logistics distribution centers
in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin and Jiamusi, and
has established a high-quality distribution system radiating across
the whole country and covering the northeastern region. During
the Year, continuously leveraging on Warehouse Management
Software System, an intelligent sorting software system, the Group
has improved the labor productivity. At the same time, the Group
has improved the working environment, the work feelings of
employees and customers have been improved, which helps the
Group's image upgrade, and lays a solid foundation for planning
of the industrial upgrading and intelligent transformation of the
logistics park.

Brand Image Promotion

With traditional advantages in continuous brand promotion
and marketing, the Group strengthened the influence and
competitiveness of the Company and mitigated the further decline
in operating performance. During the Year, the Group cut down on
traditional media, including televisions, broadcasts, newspapers,
vehicle advertisement, billboards and leaflets; adopted new
media platforms including the internet, WeChat and internet
live broadcast for promotional activities for product brands and
enterprise brands, which significantly saved advertising costs.
In addition, the Group has participated in the public charity.
Especially during the Epidemic period, it carried out activities of
free distribution of anti-epidemic supplies and specific donation
as a way to enhance the reputation of the Company and practice
its corporate social responsibilities.

Institute Training

According to the characteristics of new era, new economy, new
technology and new retail, the Group continued to optimise
the training activities of the institute and made best use of the
business institute on the Group's business development, talent
nurturing and public welfare promotion. Moreover, the Group
took the advantage of the lead in establishing business institute
in the industry to strengthen its cohesion as well as enhance the
thinking of employees and help to adapt the new requirement of
the transformation and upgrade of the business. During the Year,
49 online video internal trainings in total had been held by the
Company due to anti-epidemic.
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Membership Service

During the Year, the Group had provided follow-up services and
promotion benefits for approximately 1.6 million offline members,
enhancing the sense of affiliation and positivity of members while
boosting their loyalty, and thus promoting a healthy image of the
Company. Meanwhile, the Group provided social value-added
services in various aspects such as the provision of public toilets,
cold shelters, lost children service centres and epidemic prevented
stations for couriers and continued to launch the public welfare
activities such as “Love China”, with a view to building up its
positive corporate image.

Industry Alliance

The Company had proactively participated in the alliance activities,
with the Chairman and vice chairman, chief operating officer on
behalf of the Company attended the tours and forums organised by
the alliance, to seize the theme of era development, keep abreast
of the industry information, promote development of branded
products, strengthen the Company’s interaction and exchange with
industry alliance and constantly enhance the Group's influence.
Meanwhile, leveraging on the China’s national strategic guidances
of "Healthy China (i )", “Beautiful China GEEBH )", “Belt
and Road (—#% —#)"”, “Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area (BB AE[@)"and “Hainan Free Trade Port (85 B
H 5)78)", the Company gathered industry experience and focused
on the technological innovation to seek further transformation and
upgrade of the Company’s business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of RMB1,185.2 million for the Year
(2020: RMB1,510.1 million). Loss attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB675.4 million for the Year (2020: RMB491.4
million). Loss per share for the Year was RMB174.83 cents (2020:
Restated at RMB127.45 cents). The increase in loss attributable
to owners of the Company was mainly due to:

(i) the Group has made an analysis on the impact of the macro
and industrial economic environment and performed an
impairment assessment on investment in an associate and
non-current assets. Attributable to the unfavourable actual
performance of an associate, an impairment provision of
RMB210.4 million was made for investment in an associate.
Besides, an impairment provision of RMB8.2 million was
made for non-current assets (including intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets); and
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(i) decrease in revenue mainly resulting from the Epidemic and
increasing competition in the north-eastern region of China.
The Epidemic resulted in prolonged strict control over the
activities in the region, which includes travel restriction.

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB1,185.2 million
(2020: RMB1,510.1 million). The Group originally adhered to the
principle of small profits but quick turnover and striving for customer
resources, but the results was not as good as expected due to
the influence of the market economy environment and national
policies. The Group started to change the pricing strategies and
then gradually increase the price level of products.

Analysis of revenue by business segment

Revenue (RMB million)
Year ended 30 June

.

(i) Wem A hERHRP BRI ERE
A REY BBFIME - RIEEHZM
BHAS X RABBERE - BI-KT
BRI

Wz
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Percentage (%) of total revenue
Year ended 30 June

KR (ARBEER) RAREE D (%)
HEXAZTHLFE BEXAZTHLFE
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
“E--F  ZZCEF g —E--F  ZZCZEFE ]
Retails e 519.8 7144 -27.2% 43.9 47.3 -3.4pp
(FERE
Distributions ok 665.4 7957 -16.4% 56.1 52.7 +3.4pp
(EERE
1,185.2 1,510.1 100.0 100.0
Retail Business Segment FEXHIE
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had 845 (2020: 849) retail pharmacies R_ZZT_—FA=1+H  KEENTEE

in total, of which 650 (2020: 654) located in Heilongjiang, 127 (2020:
127) in Liaoning, 67 (2020: 67) in Jilin and 1 (2020: 1) self-operated
retail pharmacy in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group had 1 (2020:
1) supermarket in Shenyang as at 30 June 2021, mainly for selling
healthcare products and consumer goods.

20 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020/21

JERBIESASR( T T F 849K ) - H
FOS0K(ZE T F : 654K )M A EFET
12IR(ZZE-TF 127U REE - 67
R ZEZTF /RN REMRRIR(Z
T2EF R)BESTEEEGRES - It
SN RZE-—FXAZ1+H AEEEE
BREIR(ZEZZF 1R)EH  TEH
EREMIBEEM -



Distribution Business Segment

The Group adopted a prudent approach in running the distribution
business and took appropriate actions to mitigate credit risks by
strengthening the credit management of sales and minimising
trade receivables in order to lower the risk of bad debts.

During the Year, the Group had a nationwide distribution network
covering approximately 2,270 active customers (2020: 3,050), among
which, approximately 1,410 pharmaceutical retailers, hospitals and
clinics (2020: 2,020) and approximately 860 distributors (2020:
1,030).

Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group for the Year was RMB156.9 million
(2020: RMB188.5 million). Overall gross margin increase from
12.5% to 13.2%. The increase in gross margin was mainly due
to the decrease in promotion activities for offering discounts to
customers and the increase in product prices.

Analysis of gross profit by business segment

Gross profit (RMB million)
Year ended 30 June
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Gross margin (%)
Year ended 30 June

EFNEHARY®EER) ERZE(%)
BEASA=+THLEE BEAA=THLEE
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BEDE
156.9 188.5
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Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses for the Year was RMB533.8 million
(2020: RMB617.3 million) and accounted for 45.0% (2020: 40.9%)
of the Group's revenue. The decrease in selling and marketing
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in advertising and other
marketing but partially offset by the increase in depreciation of
property, plant and equipment.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year was RMB66.6 million (2020:
RMB75.3 million) and accounted for 5.6% (2020: 5.0%) of the
Group's revenue. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in donation during the Year.

Finance costs — net

Net finance costs for the Year was RMB10.6 million (2020: Net
finance income RMB7.4 million). The increase in net finance
costs was mainly due to the increase in exchange losses and the
decrease in interest income.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the Year was RMB5.2 million (2020: RMB1.2
million). Increase in income tax expenses mainly due to reversal of

deferred tax assets recognised in prior years. The effective income
tax rate for the Year was 0.8% (2020: 0.3%).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's treasury function formulated financial risk
management procedures, which are also subject to periodic review
by the senior management of the Company.

This treasury function operates as a centralized service for
managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, reallocating surplus financial resources within
the Group, procuring cost-efficient funding and targeting yield
enhancement opportunities. The treasury function regularly and
closely monitors its overall cash and debt positions, proactively
reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles to facilitate timely

refinancing, if appropriate.
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As at 30 June 2021, the Group's unpledged cash and cash
equivalents were RMB33.1 million in aggregate (2020: RMB131.3
million), and the Group’s net current assets were RMB103.7 million
(2020: RMB434.0 million).

During the Year, net cash flows used in operating activities
amounted to RMB107.7 million (2020: RMB408.3 million). The
decrease in cash flows used in operating activities was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the Group's working capital.

During the Year, the Group had capital expenditure of RMB1.9
million (2020: RMB95.7 million).

Having considered the cash flow from operating activities and
existing financial gearing, the management believes that the
Group would replenish liquidity in a timely basis to fund its day-
to-day operations, capital expenditures and prospective business
development projects. The Board will continuously and closely
monitor the Group's liquidity position and financial performance
and implement measures to improve the Group's cash flows.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, with most of its transactions
denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group's currency risk
is insignificant and mainly arises from certain bank deposits that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMB33.1 million, of which the equivalent of RMBO0.2 million was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purpose during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In the annual general meeting held on 10 December 2020, the
resolution approving the share consolidation of every ten (10)
issued and unissued shares with par value of US$0.001 each in
the share capital of the Company into one (1) consolidated share
with par value of US$0.01 (the “Share Consolidation”) was passed
and it took effect on 14 December 2020.

Upon the Share Consolidation became effective, the authorised
share capital of the Company was US$10,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 consolidated shares with par value of US$0.01
each. As at 30 June 2021, 386,313,445 ordinary shares of US$0.01
each (the "Shares”) were issued by the Company. Details of the
movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings and no bank borrowings carried annual interest rates
(2020: Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2021, calculated as
net debt divided by sum of total equity and net debt, was N/A
(2020: N/A).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

As at 30 June 2021, notes payable of the Group was secured by

the time deposits of the Group with net aggregate booking value
of RMB34.7 million (2020: RMB45.2 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had 5,586 (2020: 5,612) full-time
employees with total employee benefit expenses amounted to
RMB316.5 million for the Year (2020: RMB276.0 million). Employees
are paid according to their positions, performance, experience and
prevailing market practices, and are provided with management
and professional training. The Group has implemented a number
of initiatives to enhance the productivity of its employees. In
particular, the Group conducts periodic performance reviews on
most of the employees, and their compensation is tied to their
performance. Further, the Group’s compensation structure is
designed to incentivize its employees to perform well by linking
a portion of their compensation to their performance and the
overall performance of the Group. The performance-based
compensation partly depends on the employee’s job function and
seniority. Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement
benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as
life insurance and medical insurance. Employees in the PRC are
provided with basic social insurance and housing fund in compliance
with the requirements of the laws of China. Meanwhile, the Group
endeavours to provide its employees with a safe workplace and
structured training programs.
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FUTURE PLAN

Following the leadership of the Chairman in strategic plan and
taking the Golden Rules as its guidelines, the management of the
Group will adapt to the new situation, concentrate on universal
health, focus on the pharmaceutical industry, and deeply cultivate
the industry chain. On the basis of stabilizing and optimising the
existing retail chain network and distribution system, it will further
explore the structural transformation and digital upgrading of
the “supply-side” reform with focus on the development of the
following areas:

Firstly, “Specialization*” strategy is adopted to strengthen the
service professionalism and improve the Company’s operation
quality. Taking licensed pharmacists as the core and leveraging
on the advantages of the business institute, the Group aims to
train employees of the new era, and improve the level of pharmacy
services for the public from the aspects of corporate culture,
pharmaceutical knowledge, service skills, new marketing methods,
or introducing famous doctors, as a way to win customers and
develop markets with professionalism, and to shape professional
brands in retail chain pharmacies and distribution field.

Secondly, "Platform*” strategy is adopted to expand the value-
added service items of stores to meet the growing demand of
consumers. With the change in living environment, people pay
more attention to health, resulting in increasing demand for
prevention and treatment. In particular, the Epidemic outbreak
has further reminded the public of the importance of health care
and immunity. The Group will adopt new technological methods
according to the new situation, such as introducing Al intelligent
diagnostic medical equipment, or introducing resources in the
field of universal health in the form of partners, to enhance the
service capabilities of terminal stores and with alert marketing
model, implement franchise store promotion model as to adapt
to the market needs in the new situation.
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Thirdly, “Internet*” strategy is adopted to strengthen the linking
capability of internet to physical stores, and promote online and
offline connectivity and integration. According to the development
trend of technology and the internet, the Group will make full
use of the new situation of the popularization of mobile internet
terminals, including development of applets, use of short videos
and live commerce, moments promotion, group development
and bonding members, to develop a network for physical stores,
explore a new marketing ecosystem integrating “new business,
new retail, and new technology”, and build a dynamic and leading
competitiveness.

Therefore, by leveraging the network layout advantages of
traditional industries and grafting the new economic model,
introducing to partnership model, the Group will make efforts to
facilitate the optimization and digital transformation of the Group's
operation structure, and make plans for a new development cycle
with the wing of new engine for the Company, so as to maintain the
Group as one of the industrial leaders in terms of the construction
of industrial chain ecosystem and operation channel innovation.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

Mr. Jin Dongtao, the Chairman and an executive Director, has
resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company, and
Mr. Chu Chuanfu has been appointed as the chief executive
officer, with effect from 1 August 2021 for the sake of corporate
governance of the Group; and Mr. Sun Libo has resigned as an
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2021 but will remain
as an executive affairs officer (TTEINEEE) of the Group so as
to enable him to focus on executive work of the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30 July 2021.
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EN\IIRONMENTAL SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREAHRE

With reference to its own experience, the Company primarily
adopts the principles and basis of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its standards, with an aim to establish a sound environmental,
social and governance structure.

The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and retails
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. The Group employs the Direct-supply Model
in the sales and promotion of its high-margin products including
licensed products and the products with exclusive distribution
rights. The Group employs Original Equipment Manufacturers
(OEM) and does not directly participate in the production process,
therefore, there is no emission of waste gas and greenhouse gas,
water and land pollution and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, etc. in respect to production process. This report
elaborates the Group's performance in fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility arisen from operations in the mainland China and
Hong Kong of the PRC during the Year.

The Group understands that corporate actions are not only
critical to the future of the business, but also need to respond
to global collective concerns and be consistent with sustainable
development goals. We implement more ambitious measures
to address the impact on the climate and enhance overall
sustainability practices, including setting environmental goals.
Responsibility and transparency will drive us to achieve our goals
and environmental, social and governance (ESG) vision.
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The Group is committed to creating values for stakeholders and
the community by a responsible mode of operation, and its major
objectives are to maintain the sustainable development of the
following factors: (I) environmental aspect; (/) working environment;

public welfare.

Stakeholders
&

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Issues of concern

BEEE

N

B - @ REBHE

AEERNUEBEENREFAAFOER
HRABEEE  BEATEENEERRER
RASESZRR : ()BRBHFE: (D)
1EIREE

=

(Il) operational management; and (IV) community participation/ L&

(D)EEER RN ESE/

N2
ZX o
I

Communication channels

Government and market regulators

BUR &M SR E#E

Compliance operation

BREE

Tax payment

BNTIR

Promote regional economic
development and employment

HEED b [ AR B B R S L 2

On-site inspections and checks

BIRE Ligd

Work reports preparation and
submission for approval

R ER TEREEEL

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

Fih - PHIHREREMES TEER

Shareholders and investors

BRRIEEE

Return on investment

HE B

Information disclosure and
transparency

ER BB RERE

Protect of shareholders’ interests

PRI AR S

Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

REBEFREREMBRAE

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

Fi - PHREREMBETEER

The Company’s website

NN

The Company's contact information

AR EE T

Employees

==

Career development opportunities

EXRERES
Health and safety

Training and incentive scheme
&l KBt &
Health guidelines

fEpELE ZE2HE
Peer/industry associations e Experience sharing and e Industry alliance
CEVESES 1 co-operations TR

wEmozEhate

Industry conference and seminars
TEREGHNANES

Suppliers/partners

{LpERS A IET

Long-term partnership
REBHEE

Honest co-operation
HEak

Fair and open

A RAB

Risk reduction

P (KR B

Tendering process
HBiRBiE

Regular meeting
EHe®

Strategic cooperation
RESATE

Synergetic development

13 A 2
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREBRSE

Stakeholders

Issues of concern

Communication channels

i E BEEE BERE
Customers e Safe and high-quality products e Customer service hotline
BP ZEhEmEZEmR B IRIGE AR
e Business ethics e After-sales service
[HESEL E 1R RS
e Member activities
g28EY
Public and communities e Social responsibilities e Various charity projects
NI Ean HEEME BHEAMEEIER
e  Community involvement e Concern on environmental impact
N BTRERE

e The public welfare brand “Love
China" of the Group
REE [Z209E] W mma

(1)

30

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group only sells and markets our licensed products
under our Direct-supply Model. The Group believes that our
Direct-supply Model enables us to streamline our distribution
and supply chain by eliminating or reducing intermediaries
and enhance distribution efficiency and profitability, as
well as reducing environmental emissions in sale process.
The Group does not directly participate in manufacturing
drugs, and there is no productive resource consumption for
the Group. The Group actively responds to environmental
issues and is committed to reducing the impact of business
on the environment in its day-to-day operations through a
series of policies and measures. The following are the main
policies and measures of the Group for the implementation
of environmental protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reduce Emission

In respect of drug storage, the Group abides by Good
Supplying Practice (“GSP") as required by competent authority
of China, the primary productive consumption is limited to the
use of electricity. In terms of transportation, the Group mainly
relies on third party transportation agencies in the process
of purchase. Under the conditions permitting, the Group will
give priority to cooperation with local suppliers to reduce
the energy consumption of the transportation process. Only
ordinary office work and storage and delivery of goods will
involve usage and consumption of resources of the Group
with a small portion of use of its own vehicles.

The pollutant emission generated by use of vehicles of the
Group

BRI - S REBES

D B

BYRFGEIA AEBERPRHE
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([GSP)) » FBELREFRERRE SN
WFER: BRHAHE AEBENERRE
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EEFRFRI T - SELE BRI RER
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Emission indicators
(emission/revenue RMB million)
HFHEEE
(B WEARKEET)

For the year

Emission during the During ended 30 June

Reporting items Emission types Year the Year 2020
BE_T_ZF

HBEEE HHmER TEEHHE KEE ANH=+HILFE
Vehicle travelling BE#i{78 Nitrogen oxides A& /L#I(NOx) 1,394.5 kg T3 1.117 1.112
Vehicle travelling B#i{T78F Particulate matter F£14] 115,598.1 pcs #iI 98 96
Automotive fuel &KL Sulphur oxides Bi&{L#1(SOx) 24kg T 0.002 0.002
Automotive fuel EEIAE}  Carbon dioxide Z&/L%(CO,) 3854125 kg T5= 325.2 369.7
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BHERERRSE

Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emission

Reduction of business trips

The Group understands that long travelling for business
trips will increase energy consumption and lead to an
increase in greenhouse gas emissions. Consequently,
the Group actively reduces the number of business
trips and alternatively uses other effective means of
communication by teleconference or video conference
to replace meetings and trainings which need long
travelling.

Promotion of Environmental Protection Education to
Stakeholders

At present, the Group engages various manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by the Group.
The Group is committed to promoting the importance of
energy-saving and emission reduction to its manufacturers
and, therefore, the requirements on the manufacturers
should comply with national environmental protection
regulations and to use environmental friendly material
on packaging to the greatest extent. Among which, the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification.

The Group raises employees’ awareness of environmental
protection through induction training and slogan.
Moreover, training procedures are formulated to
incorporate the concept of environmental protection into
the employee’s annual training program, which ensures
effective implementation of the relevant energy-saving

and emission reduction measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Resource Usage

e  Save electricity and water

The Group actively advocates the concept of “green
office” and implements a series of measures to save
energy in the office, including cultivating the energy-
saving awareness of employees and encouraging them to
save electricity and water voluntarily such as turning off
the power immediately after use and setting a reasonable
temperature of air conditioner, and reduce wastage.

e Save paper

In daily operation, the Group actively promotes the
electronic use of documents, uses computer archives
instead of paper documents, and implements paperless
office as much as possible to reduce the use of paper
office supplies. The Company encourages shareholders
to support environmental protection by receiving the
corporate communication in electronic form of the
Company in the future. Meanwhile, the Group requires
employees to use double-sided printing and recycle used
paper that has been used on one side.

The management has regularly reviewed resource use policies
and usage, and does not find violations of waste.

The resources usage on operation of the Group
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Resources usage amount indicators
(Usage amount/revenue RMB million)

EREREER
(EHE WBRARBEET)

For the year ended

Resources usage Usage amount during the Year During the Year 30 June 2020
BE_T_TF

EREA rEEERE REFEE ANA=ZTHIEFE
Electricity & 917,937 degree & 774.5 573.5
Petrol 1A 163,310 litre AFF 137.8 156.7
Water 7K 9,176 m® AL 7K 7.7 4.9
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Company acknowledges that climate change and
resource shortages pose a major threat to human survival
and development. As an enterprise relying on the raw
material supply chain, the Company is fully aware of the
need to understand and manage the impact of these risks
on operations.

The Company supports the transition to a low-carbon
economy. The Company is working hard to understand and
reduce our environmental impact and carbon footprint,
which means cutting down the demand for energy and water
resources, reducing waste and improving operations.

The Company formulated series of policies for energy and
water conservation, which offer more specific advice and
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measures on management to employees.

Measure

BEEH

K AEHt o

Measure details

ERAR

Green office
BERAE

Encouraging paperless office for electronic documentation
SBELAEHL - MREFXE

Setting air conditioners to keep the temperature at 25T
REZHRE REEL25E

Turning off unused equipment or lighting system

M RB R R RA R4

Green operation

For the non-hazardous solid waste, such as domestic waste and waste
packaging, etc., the Group will deliver them to Health Authority for
handling to prevent environmental pollution upon collection

FEFHEERZERNEZRYME - OINEEREREZEEYNS - B32H
EEEBPIRRIR - B SRS RERIR

Some unqualified products found in product test and the obsolete drugs
produced during the storage are destroyed under the supervision of the
quality department

HEMBATHR - LI ERmMEFREENBRERMS
BB TR

FEEERFIH

Promotingenvironmental protectionto
manufacturers and green purchase

FSLER HEEIRRE MG ERE

Complying with environmental protection laws and regulations as well as
the environmental protection standards of the Group

BRRRERERRAEERGRERTOERELE

Choosing local suppliers at priority and manufacturing licensed brand
products based on design and packaging requirements prescribed by the
Group when meeting the Company’s requirements

EFARRELBERT - BEEEAMEER MIZRAEETHR LB
RS M IS E
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Measure Measure details
BiEEE BHEAR

B HERERESE

Providing environmental protection e Providing environmental protection training for new joiners

training to employees

BE R AR B TRERRES

M 8 TRERRE e Actively reducing the number of business trips and encouraging employees
to use teleconferences or video conferences instead of meetings which

need long travelling

BRELEEERAE  SBHETEREEASEAREHEENREENEE

Aéé
%

e Encouraging employees to reduce the use of vehicles

s B B TR AME R E

Warehouse Construction

The Group builds a logistics warehouse to analyze information
through modern system management, and realize the
generalizable, controllable, intelligent and informative
logistics, on the one hand, to improve the turnover rate and
accuracy of warehouse; on the other hand, to reduce logistics
cost and improve operation efficiency, so as to reduce
environmental pressure as a whole, improve corporate profits
and realize more abundant social values. These infrastructure,
management experience and expertise will be fully opened
to partners, enabling partners to reduce logistics costs.
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(1) WORKING ENVIRONMENT

36

Employee and Labor Standards

As of 30 June 2021, the Group had 5,586 employees, of which
99.8% located in mainland China.

The Group is in strict compliance with local employment
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Chapter
57 Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Labor Law of
the PRC, Labor Contract Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on
Protection of Minors, Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child
Labor (State Council Order No. 364) and Special Provisions on
Labor Protection of Females (State Council Order No. 619):

1 labor wages, overtime pay and related benefits in
compliance with the requirement of local minimum wage;

2 holiday andlegal holiday in compliance with the provisions
of the state;

3 equal treatment to every employee, without influence of
employee’s nationality, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political parties, marital status
and other social identity on employment, payment,
promotion, etc; and

4 implementation of integrated computation man-hour in
compliance with the requirements of labor law.
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The working hours applied to the staff of the Group are in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the employment
laws and regulations. The Group's all businesses are prohibited
from employing child labor or forced labor. The Group has
complied with relevant laws and regulations of prevention of
child and compulsory labor. We perform strict examination
in the process of recruitment to avoid hiring child labor in
any workplace. Furthermore, we will hold regular meeting
with management of all departments to review whether there
exists forced labor and also understand the situation from
the employees. Any detected employment of child labor or
forced labor will be dealt with seriously, such as stopping the
work of child labor, criticism and reduction of wages or bonus
of the person in charge of the recruitment, as the case may
be, with respect to related department and even dismissal

in severe cases.

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide ideal working environment to its staff.
Further, the Group's compensation structure is designed to
incentivize its employees to perform well by linking a portion
of their compensation to their performance and the overall
performance of the Group. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose

of enhancing cohesion and maintaining competitiveness.

B - @ REBHE

AEEETIT 2 TEREFEREEER
EHONBRENR - REEMBEBHE
IHEBZET ARSI - AEBEEST
PritERMET Reasls T2 BEEEK
RO EREAREETEREEZ T
A BBRETIEFEFIESHAIE I
BrESBHEEBREe RN EEF
ERBISTHER - MEBTRETHRIE
o —BEBREAEZETHMHS T
AEE—FEREEE FIEEITIE-
W AEEFIEITEER - IR T E R
& BREBR T AR -

AEBECDHELEB—EANEREE
BERNMIEF » LR TIERR T
BE - I REBRFENGERE S E8
BB BN B A A RAB AR SR E B
BREHD  HEE TRSRIFRR -
AEEE M T BEER ([ BRES
) DUBRREED  REBEFD -

ABEEBREEZERERAT FERE2020/21 37



38

Total number of employees by gender,

category and age

‘IR - BB IRE R F e il 7 E) 77

group EGE ¢
Age group Number at Number at
Gender Category (years old) 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
R-B=-—-§ R-F-FTF
ANA=+H AA=+H
gz =it FHRAER (5R) AE A
Female Management 50 or above
poglid EEAR 503k IA £ 43 42
40-49 94 96
30-39 56 57
18-29 11 13
General staff 50 or above
—®RET 503k A £ 286 272
40-49 1,542 1,505
30-39 1,935 1,951
18-29 775 827
Male Management 50 or above
B BEAR 503k LA £ 41 41
40-49 60 63
30-39 54 54
18-29 10 10
General staff 50 or above
—RETL 508k A 43 32
40-49 234 221
30-39 345 357
18-29 57 71
Total
HaEg 5,586 5,612
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Employee turnover rate by gender, category and age group

Employee
Age group  turnover rate

IR - 1B BIRE R F il i 5 &) 77 1
BRKHFE

Employee

turnover rate for
the year ended

Gender Category (years old) for the Year (%) 30 June 2020 (%)
BHZE
—TEHF
~NA=T+H
rEE IEFE
5l ki FHEAARI (%) WK (%) TR (%)
Female Management 50 or above
7 EBRAE 503k A 0.0 0.0
40-49 2.1 0.0
30-39 1.8 5.1
18-29 16.7 14.3
General staff 50 or above
—METL 508k A £ 0.0 0.0
40-49 0.0 0.0
30-39 0.8 0.0
18-29 6.5 6.7
Male Management 50 or above
S EEAE 508k A = 0.0 0.0
40-49 3.3 0.0
30-39 0.0 1.8
18-29 0.0 9.5
General staff 50 or above
—METL 508k A £ 0.0 6.1
40-49 0.0 0.0
30-39 3.4 0.0
18-29 21.9 20.3
0.5 1.5
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Health and Safety

The Group establishes management policies and procedures
for human resources, formulates system of occupational health
and safety and takes various steps, aiming to provide the
employees with an ideal and safe working environment. For
this purpose, the Group also persists in putting resources on
improving occupational safety and environmental protection
awareness as well as employee development. Our Code
of Business Conduct, available in the staff handbook,
communicates to our employees the Group's emphasis on
ethical business conduct. The Code of Business Conduct
applies to all employees and covers areas including, among
other things, health, safety and financial integrity, etc.

Working Environment

The Group assesses safety of working environment. The Group
implements relevant national regulations on occupational
safety and social insurance and formulates corresponding
operating rules to manage and control the health and safety
hazards posed to the employees, and also formulates relevant
contingency and precautionary measures. For example, in
business premises and offices, the Group provides relevant
staff with necessary labor protection resources, white gowns
for salesperson and the necessary education on computer
operation and water and electricity safety. Moreover, the
Group regularly monitors the compliance status including fire-
fighting equipment and regular cleaning of the air conditioning
system and replacement of relevant components to ensure
good in-door air quality for protection of employees’ health.
The Group should report and supervise rectification in event
of non-compliant situation. In terms of labor insurance, the
Group provides social insurance for employees, including
employment injury insurance. In terms of commercial
insurance, Directors and senior management are insured of
liability insurance.
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Work-Life Balance

The Group is not just concerned with the occupational health
and safety of the employees; it is also concerned with the
psychological well-being and need of private life of the
employees. Hence, the Group devises various categories
of leaves relating to an employee’s family life, and makes
provision for early leave, flexible vacation, etc. to align
with the roles of an employee in his/her family. In addition,
the Group will arrange a variety of activities to ease the
employees’ pressure and enrich employees’ life outside of
work, such as arrangement of festival celebration activities,
sport competitions, etc.

During the Year, no work-related death or injury occurred with
respect to any employees within the Group.

Development and Training

The Group has implemented a number of initiatives to
enhance the productivity of our employees. Among which,
Jintian Institute is an internal training institution first set up in
the industry, and subsequently introduced to China Business
School Education Group Limited, which established in Hong
Kong and is also our training institution.
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Jintian Institute (also named as “Jintian School”)

Jintian Institute is an in-house training and development
centre, providing systematic and comprehensive training to
our employees as well as our important distribution customers
periodically. These training courses focus on the promotion
of employee’s sales skills and deepening the understanding
of enterprise culture of the Group. Jintian Institute provides
certain training programmes and courses covering various
aspects of business operations of the Group, including but not
limited to, medical and nutrition knowledge, store operations
and procedures, sales and marketing techniques, customer
interaction and service skills. Jintian Institute also provides
training to our management team in areas such as business
process and planning, leadership development, effective
communication and management skills. Another key function
of the Jintian Institute is to organise events and seminars to
promote corporate values of the Group: goal- orientation,
teamwork and collectivism. In the meanwhile, the Group
also provides continuous training for Directors and senior
management on relevant laws and regulatory update as well
as business matters related to the Group, to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

These trainings include seminars and workshop on leadership
development, corporate governance practices as well as
regulatory development and requirements. Through these
training programmes, our employees are able to master
standard operating procedures of the Group, communicate
effectively with customers and acquire a better understanding
of customers’ preferences. Jintian Institute also helps us to
build an experienced, loyal and focused workforce.

During the Year, the Group provided 49 sessions of training
to employees through Jintian Institute with up to 3,229
participants, with an aim to make active efforts for improving
staff quality and management performance, and adapt to the

new norm of the economic development.
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Details for employees receiving training from Jintian Institute
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Participants during

Participants the year ended

Category during the Year 30 June 2020

BHE_T_TF

XEE AA=TAHLEFE

<Yl FZIAR HINAR

Senior Management Personnel &R EIEA B 24 45

Middle Management Personnel FAREIE A B 130 101

Salespersons ¥ A8 3,075 6,510

Total &5 3,229 6,656
Encouragement for External Learning HENHER

While conducting internal training actively, the Group
also encourages its employees to participate in exams for
external higher education and professional qualification. By
sharing the resource of the Jintian Institute, we organize
employees to participate in the exams of licensed pharmacists,
undergraduate and postgraduate etc., encourage employees
to promote themselves from different aspects, and improve
business skills and comprehensive quality, etc.

Peer/Industry Associations

China Medical Pharmaceutical Material Association (7 B £ %%
ME#E) was established in 1989, which was a national, non-
profit making social entities Class | corporate organization
approved to be registered by the Ministry of Civil Affairs of
the PRC (7 B R B #B). Business supervisory unit is State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of The
State Council. The Chairman, Mr. Jin Dongtao is vice chairman
of the China Medical Pharmaceutical Material Association.
The Group's senior management and employees participate
in the training and offline activities of the association on an
irregular basis.
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(111) OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
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Supply Chain Management

In order to enhance operation and management, the Group
works on simplifying the supply chain management; as well
as diversifying supplier channels to reduce purchase cost and
building a structure that combines upstream and downstream
through mergers and acquisitions. Out of all the Group's
suppliers, 349 are manufacturers and 638 are distributors. For
the years ended 30 June 2021 and 2020, 27.5% and 30.9%
products were purchased directly from the manufacturers
respectively.

Product Quality and Safety

For the responsibility in product sales, the Group pays
attention to the quality management, complaint handling
and customer privacy protection.

At present, the Group engages several manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by us. All the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification, including Good
Manufacturing Practice Certification. The Group also requires
suppliers to meet the national Good Manufacturing Practice.
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The Group strictly implemented the national GSP in the storage
and transportation of products, assigned special personnel to
supervise temperature and humidity and established effective
period warning mechanism for the purpose of strengthening
quality control. The Group strengthened the maintenance and
protection of intellectual property rights. In the procurement
procedures, we strictly follow the requirements of GSP and
require suppliers to avoid infringement of intellectual property
rights of third parties; otherwise, the liability for tort shall be
borne by the relevant supplier. The Group also strengthened
quality controls, promptly notify the supplier of any breakage
or other fault of products found during acceptance check and
require relevant supplier or transportation operator to make
compensation after distinguishing their respective liabilities.
The Group strengthened the management of product
circulation, in case quality issues with products were found, the
Group will take down from shelves and recall those products
in time according to the notice of competent authority and
notify the supplier to make compensation as agreed. In
addition, we strictly protect the privacy of consumer, all of
the members and consumers data will be under computer
encryption process. The Group also requires allied unit of
different industry (if any) to protect consumer privacy. In case
of adverse drug reaction, the Group will report to competent
authority of the industry upon receipt of any feedback from
customers.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to promoting ethical business
practices and full compliance with the law wherever we do
business. There are strict internal guidelines within the Group
which prohibit the employees’ involvement in illegal activities,
such as bribery, extortion, money laundering and fraud. The
Group often participates in the training plans provided through
Jintian Institute, which allows our employees to possess rich
experiences in many aspects of Direct-supply Model, such
as medical product manufacturing, purchasing and quality
control, pharmacy operation and marketing.
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The Group has in place a "whistle-blowing” policy and system
for our employees to report suspected criminal acts including
corruption, money laundering and fraud. During the Year,
there is no corruption case reported, or legal case regarding
corrupt practices or money laundering brought against the
Group.

(Iv) COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION/PUBLIC WELFARE

46

In order to increase the participation in social activities, the
Group endeavors to launch more activities for community
members and promote the development of public welfare
brand “Love China”. At the same time, the Group strives to
strengthen corporate governance and integrate its corporate
development with public welfare philosophy.

The Group is committed to creating sustainable development
value in economic, social and environmental aspects to fulfil
its corporate social responsibility and achieve long-term
sustainable growth of shareholder value. The management
of the Group reviews the policy implementation, monitors
and measures the progress from time to time to ensure its
stated goals achieved in an effective manner.

In order to expand membership base, we propagandize
membership programme through a variety of marketing
campaigns and also plans to strengthen the analysis of
members’ consumption patterns and preferences so as to
optimize the retail marketing strategy. At the same time,
we continue to increase the number of online members
through smart platforms such as applets. We will continue
to provide members with diversified incremental services, for
example, free drug delivery, and free consultation provided
to community through the Business Institute, free testing
provided to community residents by medical team, etc., and
constantly improve the service level.
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Member Activities

During the Year, the branches of the Group intensified
member activities, including ongoing member discounts and
festival activities, provision of cold shelters in winter, provision
of shelter and other support for the lost child as well as
other social value-added services, which further improved the
cohesion of the members and their willingness to consume.
As of 30 June 2021, we had approximately 1.6 million offline
members, the average consumption of members reached
RMB158 and the Group held 784 sessions of membership
activities in total.

Love China Public Welfare Activities (Z/0\7F Bl 2 #3555 B)

Aixin Chuanbo (Beijing) Wenhua Fazhan Zhongxin* (B /[ME
FEEER)XEEREF L) was established in 2011 for welfare
activities "Love + Health”, which was the nationwide fitness
and Love program under the name of “Love” and composed
of a series of commonweal undertakings, such as “Nationwide
Fitness Programme” of body building exercise, “Support and
Assist Students and Teachers Programme” caring for the
next generation, and “Programme of Army Wife Employment
Base” aim at supporting national defense, all of which were
designed to pass on China's five thousand years of culture,
carry forward the spirit of love Party and patriotism, advocate

healthy philosophy of charity and spread healthy culture of
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caring others. Love China activities are committed to building
the platform for the interaction and communication among
government, media, enterprises and charities, through which
we develop public welfare undertaking, converge love,
promote physical and mental health in the society and forge
Love China and Love World. The public welfare brand “Love
China” constitutes the best platform for the Group to fulfill
its social responsibility.

During the Year, the Group made some medication donations.

In conclusion, the Group has been always adhered to the
environmental protection concept of environment caring
and sustainable development; while the management
strengthening corporate governance to achieve the best
operating practices with the combination of governance and
efficiency, actively assuming community responsibilities and
building the public welfare brand “Love China” as the best
platform for fulfillment of social responsibilities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWE

The Board has pleasure in presenting the Report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in the distribution and retail
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
during the Year is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 119 to 120 of this
annual report.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the Year
are set out in the sections of “Financial Summary” and “Financial
Highlights” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

During the Year, the Group has maintained a good relationship
with its stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES THE GROUP FACING

The principal risk and uncertainties the Group facing are set out in
the sections of “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2020: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations and subject to the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”). Provided there are
distributable profits and without affecting the operations of the
Group, the Company may consider declaring and paying dividends
to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, included but not limited to: (i) the general financial
condition of the Group; (ii) working capital and debt level of the
Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders; (v) the general market conditions; and (vi) any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review and outlook of the Group for the Year is set
out in the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

One of the fundamental tasks of the senior management of the
Group is leading the Group to protect the environment. The Group,
as a corporate citizen, fulfills social responsibility, strengthens
corporate governance, promotes healthy and orderly development
of the Group, and further creates economic value and social
benefits for clients, upstream suppliers, downstream distributors,
Shareholders, potential investors, management, employees,
communities and even the environment and other stakeholders.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 6 December 2021, to Thursday, 9 December 2021,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 9
December 2021. All transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 3 December 2021.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages 263 to
264 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the purchase from the Group’s five largest
suppliers contributed 9.4% of the total cost of sales and the sale
to the Group's five largest customers contributed 2.6% of the
total revenue.

Save as disclosed hereinafter, none of the Directors or any of
their respective close associates or, so far as the Directors were
aware, any Shareholder who owned 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2021, had any interest in
any of our five largest suppliers or customers for the years ended
30 June 2021 and 2020.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out on page 121 and in Note
36(a) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law of the Cayman Island, amounted to approximately
RMB549.2 million (2020: RMB972.0 million).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman)
(Resigned as chief executive officer on 1 August 2021)
Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman)
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Appointed as executive Director,
chief executive officer and chief operation officer on
1 August 2021)
Mr. Zhao Zehua
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned as executive Director on
1 August 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Article of Association, any
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible for re-election at that meeting; and in accordance with
Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, at every annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM"), one- third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Chu Chuanfu, Mr. Jin Dongtao, Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 93 to 102 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers
such Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’
APPOINTMENT

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Jin Dongtao, Mr. Jin
Dongkun, Mr. Zhao Zehua and Mr. Chu Chuanfu, has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of three
years from 18 November 2013, 18 November 2013, 16 June 2015
and 1 August 2021 respectively. The appointment letters continue
after the initial terms until termination by either party giving notice
in writing to the other party.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Cheng Sheung Hing, Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie and Mr. Zou Haiyan,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an
initial term of three years from 18 November 2013, 18 November
2013 and 20 July 2017 respectively, which continues thereafter
until termination by either party giving notice in writing to the
other party.
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Each of the Directors is subject to the provisions for retirement by
rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Articles of
Association. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has
service contract or letter of appointment which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has entered into any contract of significance for the provision of
services by any controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was
a party or were parties and in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 35 and Note 27(a) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the Year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of the
information of the Directors are as follows:

Mr. Jin Dongtao, the Chairman and an executive Director, resigned
as the chief executive officer and Mr. Chu Chuanfu was appointed
as the chief executive officer, with effect from 1 August 2021; and

Mr. Sun Libo resigned as an executive Director with effect from
1 August 2021.He remains as an executive affairs officer (fTE4N
FHE1E) of the Group.

During the Year, save as disclosed above, there was no change
in information of the Directors which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained
by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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Name of Director

Nature of Interest

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Number and
class of Shares/
underlying Shares*

ExaRs

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

BB, EER G5 BRI
EEHE fERME HERER Aotk
Jin Dongtao Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 90,701,495 23.48%
(Long Position)
THRE BB SRR A (FTa2) (7 R)
Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 3) 7,166,801 1.86%
(Long Position)
BEmmB AHF1K23) (7 E)
Interest of spouse (Notes 1 & 4) 723,400 0.19%
(Long Position)
Ao i as (MfaF 1%4) (7 E)
Zhao Zehua Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 5) 723,400 0.19%
(Long Position)
R BEmlEB AME1R5) (7 E)
Jin Dongkun Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 6) 580,000 0.15%
(Long Position)
SRE BB AME1%6) (4FE)
Sun Libo Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 6) 580,000 0.15%
(Long Position)
FIR BEmiEa AMeE1K6) (4FB)
Cheng Sheung Hing Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 7) 50,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
e BEnBmEAMZFIRT) (#FE)
Chiang Su Hui Susie Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 7) 50,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
TER EnEaAMT1K7) (#F &)
Zou Haiyan Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 8) 50,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
B EmmB AHF1%8) (7 E)
* The number of Shares has been adjusted as a result of the Share Consolidation. XD B B FERMND & O mFBEE ©
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Notes:

58

In September 2017, the Company granted a total of 20,000,000 share options (the “Share
Options 2017") to 20 eligible participants which include 4 executive Directors and an
associate (as defined under Rule 17.06A of the Listing Rules) of an executive Director.
All the Share Options 2017 were accepted by the grantees under the rules of the Share
Option Scheme.

In March 2019, the Company granted a total of 30,000,000 share options (the “Share
Options 2019") to 50 eligible participants which include 7 Directors and an associate (as
defined under Rule 17.06A of the Listing Rules) of an executive Director. All the Share
Options 2019 were accepted by the grantees under the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Jin Dongtao is the settlor, protector and a beneficiary of a discretionary trust pursuant
to a trust deed dated 6 November 2013 with Credit Suisse Trust Limited acting as trustee
(the “Family Trust”), which holds the entire issued share capital of Global Health Century
International Group Limited (“Global Health”) through 1969 JT Limited. Global Health
holds the entire issued share capital of Asia Health Century International Inc. (“Asia
Health”), which held 90,701,495 Shares.

Mr. Jin Dongtao beneficially owned 6,886,800 Shares and was the grantee of 280,000 Share
Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
280,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of such Share Options.

Ms. Chen Xiaoyan, the spouse of Mr. Jin Dongtao, beneficially owned 443,400 Shares
and was the grantee of 280,000 Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme.
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, 280,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of
such Share Options. Accordingly, Mr. Jin Dongtao was deemed to be interested in such
723,400 Shares.

Mr. Zhao Zehua beneficially owned 443,400 Shares and was the grantee of 280,000 Share
Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
280,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of such Share Options.

Both Mr. Jin Dongkun and Mr. Sun Libo beneficially owned 300,000 Shares and each of
them was granted 280,000 Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, each of them is entitled to subscribe for 280,000 Shares
upon exercise of such Share Options.

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie were each granted 50,000 Share
Options 2019 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, each
of them is entitled to subscribe for 50,000 Shares upon exercise of such Share Options
2019.

Mr. Zou Haiyan beneficially owned 50,000 Shares which were exercised from the Share
Options 2019 under the Share Option Scheme.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder passed on 18 November 2013 and amended on
20 December 2018 for the purpose of attracting skilled and
experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to contribute for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company, as well
as for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years until 17 November 2023.

The refreshed maximum number of shares that can be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of share options which may be
granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
is 38,631,344, being 10% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of passing of the resolution approving the said
refreshment at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 10 December 2020. Together with the total of 22,470,000
outstanding share options granted in September 2017 and in
March 2019, representing approximately 5.82% of the total number
of issued Shares, the Company will be allowed to allot and issue
a maximum of 61,101,344 Shares (representing approximately
15.82% of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report),
upon the exercise of share option which may be/have been granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
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The Share Options 2019 were granted to 50 eligible participants
which include 7 Directors and an associate (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of an executive Director on 4 March 2019 exercisable
from 4 April 2019 to 3 April 2029. 275,300,000 options under the
Share Options 2019 have been exercised, remaining 24,700,000
options outstanding. Rule 17.03(5) of the Listing Rules requires
that the exercise period of option must not be more than 10 years
from the date of the grant instead of the commencement date
of the exercise period. The resolution approving the shortening
of exercise period (from 3 April 2029 to 3 March 2029) has been
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
10 December 2020, such that the term of the Share Options 2019
complies with the Listing Rules.

Besides, in order to encourage long-term commitment to the
Company and to align the interests of Directors and certain
employees with the Company's development, the resolution
approving the extension of exercise period (from 11 October
2020 to 11 September 2027) has been passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2020, such that
the term of the Share Options 2017 aligns with that of the Share
Options 2019.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, all principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme remain unchanged and are set out in
Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 2 December
2013.
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Particulars of Share Options outstanding under the Share Option =~ REYI R FRBIEBEIRE S W ARITEAE
Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the Year and Share MRERRAFERBZEERETSIRD » 17
Options granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share  {# + Kk SHAIBIEE BT
Option Scheme during the Year are as follows:

Number of Share Options*
ERREE"
Closing Lapsed/
price Exercise Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of per share price per  Exercise Outstanding ~ duringthe ~ during the  during the as at
Grantees grant (Note 1) option period as at 1/7/2020 Year Year Year 30/6/2021
shEH REEE BB
Wi EiahE N-2-2F  RAEE RAEE BAW/ ~A=1H
RRA RiAH (it1) gl fEHE tA-BHAGRE R Bfife s HA{TE
HKD HKD
AT AT
Director & substantial shareholder
BERTERR
Jin Dongtao 1219/2017 1.57 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
£5E “E-tENATIA TR {ETATIRR
ZBCHEART-R
Directors
£
Jin Dongkun 1219/2017 157 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
£RR “E-rEAATZR “E-tETATCRE
ZBCEEART-R
Zhao Zehua 12/9/2017 157 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
il == “2-tERATCR B AETATORE
ZECEERAT-R
Sun Libo 1219/2017 1.57 1648 121072017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
Bk “E-tEnATZA Z2-tETATZAE
ZBCEEAAT-R
Cheng Sheung Hing 4132019 083 074 4/4/2019 - 3/3/2029 50,000 - - - 50,000
LI "2 NEZAMA “2-)EMANAE
“2NE=A=R
Chiang Su Hui Susie 4132019 083 074 4/4/2019 - 3/3/2029 50,000 - - - 50,000
HEL: “E-NF=ARA “Z-NFNARAZR
“E-NEZAZR
& The number of Shares has been adjusted as a result of the Share Consolidation. * Ik B B BERH & mA% o
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Number of Share Options*
BHRRUE
Closing Lapsed/
price Exercise Granted  Exercised  cancelled Outstanding
Date of per share price per  Exercise Outstanding ~ duringthe ~ during the ~ during the as at
Grantees grant (Note 1) option  period as at 1/7/2020 Year Year Year 30/6/2021
ShkH MEEE  WBC-F
LGl SftishEe R-2-2F  RAFE RREE BAY/ RAZTH
ARA RHAH (Hiit1) figE TEHE tA-REAfHE B Bfife il HATE
HKD HKD
BT AT
Associate of Director
BZ/BRA
Chen Xiaoyan (the spouse 12/9/2017 157 1648 121072017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
of Jin Dongtao)
RES (£RBLRB) —E-tENATCA "B AFTATCRE
“ECLEAATR
Continuous contract ~ 12/9/2017 1.57 1648 121072017 - 11/9/2027 18,600,000 - - - 18,600,000
employees
RAcHRR “E-tFnATCR “E-tETATCRE
"2 LEAATR
4132019 083 074 4/4/2019 - 3/3/2029 2,350,000 - - - 2,350,000
“T-NE=ARA “Z-NEMABAR
“E-NEZAZR
Others 4132019 083 074 4/412019 - 3/3/2029 200,000 - - - 200,000
A “2-NEZARA “E-NEMARAZ
“ECNEZAZR
Total 22,470,000 - - - 22,470,000
i

The numbers of options, the closing price per Share and the
exercise price per option have been retrospectively adjusted for
the share consolidation on 14 December 2020.

The expiring dates of exercise periods of share options have been
amended and approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 December 2020.

Notes:

1) The closing price per Share refers to the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date immediately before the date
on which the Share Options were granted.

The number of Shares has been adjusted as a result of the Share Consolidation.
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SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the Share Award Plan
are to recognize the contributions by eligible persons to the
Group and provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for continual operation and development of the Group and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Plan shall be valid and effective for a
term of 10 years commencing from 23 April 2014. With a view to
saving costs, it was resolved by the Board to terminate the Share
Award Scheme with effect from 21 December 2020.

The Share Award Plan shall be subject to the administration of
the Board or the administration committee or the trustee of the
Share Award Plan in accordance with its terms. The Board or
the Remuneration Committee may select any eligible person for
participation in the Share Award Plan and determine the number
of awarded shares to be awarded to the selected person(s), subject
to any condition(s).

The Company has initially paid the trustee up to HKD50 million
to enable the Share Award Plan to operate. The Company may
at its discretion make further arrangements to fund the trustee
for acquisition of further shares. Subject to the instruction of the
Company, the trustee can use the money paid to it to buy shares
in advance in respect of which the Company can make awards
under the Share Award Plan.
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The Board shall not make any further award of shares under the
Share Award Plan which will result in the nominal value of the
shares awarded exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 23 April 2014. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Plan in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Based on
the 2,000,000,000 shares in issue as at 23 April 2014, the maximum
number of awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would
be 200,000,000 shares. As retrospectively adjusted for the share
consolidation on 14 December 2020, the maximum number of
awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would be 20,000,000.

An aggregate of 1,699,300 shares has been granted without
consideration to an aggregate of 13 grantees under the Share
Award Plan since its inception. As at 30 June 2021, the trustee of
the Share Award Plan did not hold any shares under the Share
Award Plan, and no share has been granted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity linked agreements were entered by the Company or
existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number and Approximate

class of Shares/ percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest underlying Shares* shareholding

B 13,6 B3 AR 17 BRI

"L LB By REmME 2B REHRI* Bk

Chen Xiaoyan Interest of spouse (Note 1) 97,868,295 25.33%
(Long Position)
ReR S 1 B (S iEes (Ffat1) (5F8)

Beneficial owner 723,400 0.19%
(Long Position)
E=EAA (57E)

Asia Health Century Beneficial owner (Note 1) 90,701,495 23.48%
International Inc. (Long Position)
EnEAAMTET) (#FE)

Global Health Century Interest of corporation controlled by the 90,701,495 23.48%
International Group Limited substantial shareholder (Note 1) (Long Position)
XE BRI EE ER (T 1) (#FE)

1969 JT Limited Interest of corporation controlled by the 90,701,495 23.48%
substantial shareholder (Note 1) (Long Position)
REERFIEGEEER (A1) (5F8)

Tenby Nominees Limited Nominee (Note 1) 90,701,495 23.48%
(Long Position)
=INC ) (5FE)
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Number and
class of Shares/

Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest underlying Shares* shareholding
848 1ERA R 5 BAFR
"L LB Bin REmtE 2B RERI* Aotk
Brock Nominees Limited Nominee (Note 1) 90,701,495 23.48%
(Long Position)
E=INC ) (7 &)
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee (Note 1) 90,701,495 23.48%
(Long Position)
SEEA(HTEET) (7 E)
Lee Funglun Beneficial owner (Note 2) 24,240,518 6.27%
(Long Position)
=X Jin BuA AMiZ2) (4FE)
Notes: izt -
1) Mr. Jin Dongtao is the settlor, protector and a beneficiary of the Family Trust, which 1) SHRBLAEBRGELENEIZA REARZZEA %

holds the entire issued share capital of Global Health through 1969 JT Limited. Ms. Chen
Xiaoyan, who is Mr. Jin Dongtao's spouse, is also a beneficiary of the Family Trust. Global
Health holds the entire issued share capital of Asia Health, which holds 90,701,495 Shares
in the Company.

2) As confirmed by Mr. Lee Funglun, the 24,240,518 Shares in the Company held by him
was bought from Zhongrong International Alternative Asset Management Limited on 26
February 2019.

* The number of Shares has been adjusted as a result of the Share Consolidation.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/her/its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”).

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, the independent non-
executive Directors are responsible for reviewing and considering
whether exercising any option and/or pre-emptive right (where
applicable), as well as entitled to conduct annual review of
implementation of the Deed of Non-Competition on behalf of
the Company. The controlling Shareholders have confirmed in
writing to the Company of their compliance with the Deed of
Non- Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the
Year. During the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed the implementation of the Deed of Non-
Competition, and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have fully abided by the Deed of Non- Competition without any
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related parties transactions disclosed in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements, there were no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding companies and
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group had not entered into any
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions for
the Year which are required to be disclosed in this annual report
pursuant to the Listing Rules. A summary of significant related
party transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the Year is disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made some medication donations.

During the Year, the Group continued to perform its social
responsibility by constantly organizing innovative caring projects,
such as Love China Charity Award Ceremony, Charity In Action,
Love China Medical Support, Love China Education Aid Program
and Love China Square Dance, so as to enhance its recognition
and reputation through charity activities.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou Haiyan
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie. The main duties of the Audit Committee
are to examine, review and monitor the financial data and financial
reporting procedure of the Group, and overseeing the Group's
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited annual
results of the Group for the Year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors'’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with such
code of conduct throughout the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the Year, except for deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.
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Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 71 to 92 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of
the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to re-appoint
Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”), Certified Public Accountants, as
the auditor of the Company.

SHARE ISSUED

Details of the Company'’s shares issued during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note
21 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had issued any of the Company’s listed securities.

On behalf of the Board

Jin Dongtao
Chairman

Hong Kong
28 September 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEEREE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code and
complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code
throughout the Year, except for deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman), Mr. Jin Dongkun (vice chairman), Mr.
Zhao Zehua and Mr. Chu Chuanfu (chief executive officer and chief
operation officer), and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing, Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie and Mr.
Zou Haiyan. The biographies of the Directors are set out under
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

For the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise and the number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report, none of the Directors has
any personal relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director and
the chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the
identities of the public companies or organisations and the time
involved, Directors have agreed to disclose such commitments (if
any) to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
During the Year, all Directors participated in various continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company’s external lawyers had facilitated directors’
training by the provision of presentations, briefings and materials
for the Directors primarily relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. All the Directors have
received such training.

The Company maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year
is as follows:
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Internal training

R &R 1% 3
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jin Dongtao SHRFLE v
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRELE v
Mr. Zhao Zehua HHIZE LA v
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned on 1 August 2021) RIS, (BERZFEZ—FNHA—HEE) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EERES A v
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBA LT v
Mr. Zou Haiyan WBHLE v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code throughout the Year except for a deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. The positions of chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company have been held by
Mr. Jin Dongtao during the Year. The Board believes that despite
the responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company vested by same person, all major decisions were
made in consultation with the Board.

For the sake of corporate governance of the Group, Mr. Jin
Dongtao has resigned as the chief executive officer and Mr. Chu
Chuanfu has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company with effective from 1 August 2021.

The Company has complied with all code provisions as set out in
the CG Code since 1 August 2021 and, where appropriate, the
applicable recommended best practices of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the Directors have signed an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years.

Mr. Jin Dongtao has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 28 November
2019, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Mr. Chu Chuanfu has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 August
2021, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie has entered into an appointment letter
with the Company as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of three years commencing from 28 November 2019, and may
be terminated in accordance with the terms of the appointment
letter.
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None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and
new Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings
are kept by the company secretary with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which
the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open
for inspection by Directors.

For the Year, 4 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were held
and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings
is set out in the table below:

EEeea L ESREeRRNERLT
AERCHREFERESREEMERNER
RFTEZHPRE - BREFRE DO ERRE
B REZTECRNEFTLREETHRNER
LHREHRAKNERBITE ARNAERR
AFTERES  WHRESFRIERL -EFE
RN SHRLEAIHEESER -

AER  EEQRBTIREECRERIR
BEAS - SEFEFEZSSEOEIRR
T :

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = EHERE T ERE
Board Meetings General Meeting
EXEER REXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman) SRBLE (EE) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRELLE 4/4 11
Mr. Zhao Zehua HEERE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Sun Libo (Resigned on 1 August 2021) FIOR ek (BER=ZFE=—F
NA—HEHE) 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing B ST A 4/4 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBLZ+ 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zou Haiyan 2R EAE 4/4 1/1

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiries has been made with all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

During the Year, the Company had also adopted its own code of
conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model Code for
the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company's securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, risk management and internal
control systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and
are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company'’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and they are responsible
for the corporate governance duties. The Audit Committee will
develop and review the policies and procedures on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board. The
aforesaid duties include:

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board and report to the Board on matters;

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

()  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.
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During the Year, the Company has updated the compliance
manuals on notifiable transactions and inside information in
accordance with the Listing Rules as guideline for its employees
to report unpublished inside information to the Company to ensure
consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the Company’s
continuous disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Jin Dongtao (executive Director), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing (independent non-executive Director) and Ms. Chiang Su
Hui Susie (independent non-executive Director), the majority of
them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Jin Dongtao
serves as the chairman.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

e To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) required of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e  To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors;

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors; and

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Year, 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:
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REE  REZEGERTIREHE  =B%
ZEERMEMHFECEHENTX

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = B HERE T HERE
Mr. Jin Dongtao SRBELE 1/1
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EPEERS S A 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie LRFZ+ 11

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, considered
the re-election of the retiring Directors and reviewed the time
commitment required from the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and is of the view that
the board diversity policy is appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed
issuers are required to adopt a board diversity policy. The Board
has adopted the board diversity policy and summary of the board
diversity policy is set out below:

The Nomination Committee is authorised to formulate nomination
policy for the Board'’s consideration and implement the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship. The objectives of the
Board diversity policy are to ensure the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. It
also sets out that all Board members will be appointed based on
merit basis with due consideration to the Board diversity. While
selecting candidates for directorship, the committee has taken
into account of a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience and qualification, skills and knowledge. Currently,
the Board consists of 7 members having expertise in various
aspects of professional knowledge and experience which include
the familiarity with its business model, finance, accounting, taxation
management and compliance, etc. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this report
for brief biographies of the Directors.
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In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
shall give adequate consideration to the Board diversity policy.
The committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members
from different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional
expertise of various industries, which indicates that the diversity
policy has been well implemented. The main responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least once a year and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company'’s
corporate strategy, and identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Directors and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning for
the Directors. The committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (independent non-executive
Director), Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Jin Dongkun (executive Director), the majority
of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing serves as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for formulating such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her close associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions. It also makes recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. Their written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

80 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020/21

EEHEFSHERE  REZ8SERNE
BEFEKREZTTIEHEK - ZBEMHE " &

ZeRRARABTERAZERL  KER
BERAE XETRAXEERREES
TENEENDE BrEHERRERD
it - IRRZBE I ERER/EBFEIR
N—REFECRE  REREKBRRER
BE - ABAMEE)  WiRHEMESE 21E
MEZBREBNES - WERARFNERE
B RYEEEEAERKAEFTHIAER
HEIPHERBESREA - ZEREH
REEEUANEFEIHINETSREE
& RESNAENEBIUFNTERLE
S e

FMESS
FEESRGH=—RKEAENK  BEEL
EBYFRTES)  ITRBRT(BIF

HITEZR)ReREEE(WITES) &9
REBRBIUIFNTES - BEELLEE
SR

FHREENEIZRBEERASIITESR
BARE IR A B RO BN BOR N 4518 DA N B A
ERHEHEEER - WREREIE - HME
BE I B B HIR] A R B R SRR E
BRANERF  UERMESEFEHHEEMNED
BB AR 2 ERTE HA S HEN - 5 BB
BEZE[ARRRRRBIARTIZED K
BERRETE - FTHNEZESTHUIERITESRH
MRAEESRHEEER - ERSHBES
BB P S AN BB E AT B R -



During the Year, 1 meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:
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AEE FMEERSBRTIREE  H W
ZE®

BB A E SR I T ¢

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = EHERE T ERE
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EEE B ST A 11
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBR+ 1/1
Mr. Jin Dongkun BREEE 1/1

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed
and reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including adjustment on the
remuneration of some senior management for the Year. The
Board has adopted the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee and resolved to approve the aforesaid adjustment.

The remuneration of one senior management of the Company,
whose biography is set out on pages 101 to 102 of this annual
report, falls within the band from RMBO million to RMB1.0 million
for the Year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Zou Haiyan, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui
Susie, all of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Zou Haiyan serves as the chairman.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors before submission to
the Board;

e To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor;

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company'’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting
and financial reporting function; and

e To review the Group's financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems.

During the Year, 4 meetings of the Audit Committee were held
and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is
set out in the table below:

BERREENEIZREBRE NIIREA

ZN
ZEEEMEMHFELEINTX

FRMBHRRNHRE - ANMEFSIR
RBEBXE  EEARRBEGT K
IS ERBRBAENET « AREEIEE
Aife WM EARREFEIA

REBINBZBEIFTETH T - WEBR
RIS fRFR T AR BEN AR (R - WHLES
£ BREMERIMNIZBEESSIR
HEBEER

R ANRBIMBERRERG - AREER
W EBESIE R A R R FF ey FE R 1 I
B BRASEES &M HR
BEETHMNER BTEBEMKR 15
JIRERAERERR &

WA AR B BIES  EREERA

FEESFR A -

B BEZREGERTARNEH  BZ

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors BE= EHERE T ERE
Mr. Zou Haiyan R LE 4/4
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EPEERE ST A 4/4
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRFZ+ 4/4
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During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function) and
processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Board had accepted the recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection and re-appointment of external
auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year as well as
the audit report prepared by the Auditors relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit. There are proper
arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and risk management and other matters. Their written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the Year which give a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group's
results and cash flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 103 to 116 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
to maintain an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the
Company's assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control
systems are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities
(with relevant authorities) of risk management and internal controls
to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems for the Year.

Main features of the risk management and internal control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main responsibilities
of each level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

e Determine the business strategies and objectives of the
Group, and evaluate and determine the nature and extent
of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives;

e  Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

e Oversee management in design, implementation and

monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.
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Audit Committee

Assist the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control systems;

Oversee the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis;

Review the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems at least annually, and such
review should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control;

Ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions;
and

Consider major findings on risk management and internal
control matters, and report and make recommendations to
the Board.

Management

Review the risk management and internal control policy and
measures and submit them for Audit Committee’s approval;

Design, implement and maintain appropriate and effective

risk management and internal control systems;

Identify, evaluate and manage the risk that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-

day operations;

Give prompt responses to and follow up the findings on
risk management and internal control matters raised by the
internal audit department; and

Provide confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

systems.
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Internal Audit Department
e Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems; and

e Report to the Audit Committee the findings of the review
and make recommendations to the Board and management
to improve the material systems deficiencies or control
weaknesses identified.

Supervisor and Staff
e Consider how to conduct their responsibilities in light of

effectiveness of internal control; and
e Discuss with management for strengthening internal control.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e Develop risk management plan; and

e |dentify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assess the risks identified by using the assessment criteria

developed by the management; and

e Consider the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.
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Risk Response
e  Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e  Determine the risk management strategies, contingency plans
and internal control processes to prevent, avoid and mitigate
the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e  Revise the risk management strategies, contingency plans and
internal control processes in case of any significant change
of environment; and

e  Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
all risk management functions and material internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance control. Based
on its management experience, the Group further strengthened
the establishment of internal audit system, outlined the internal
control functions and enhanced risk management. The Group also
formulated the “Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management
- Hong Kong Branch”( { WEFEE1E KRR ERFM (FESE) ))
to continuously enhance the level of risk management and internal
controls. The Board therefore considered that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate during the
Year. In addition, it has also reviewed and has satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.
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Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by the Group's
internal audit department, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The Group's internal audit department plays a major
role in the assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reports directly to
the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

The internal audit department conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures
of the Group at both operational and corporate level. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are identified
and communicated with operations management to address any
issues, non-compliance or deficiencies identified. The internal audit
department monitors the implementation of its recommendations
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the SFO, the Group
has taken various procedures and measures, including arousing
the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information
with the Group, sending blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions notification to the relevant directors and employees
regularly, disseminating information to specified persons on a
need-to-know basis and regarding closely to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and

Futures Commission in June 2012.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Mazars is the independent auditor of the Company. During the
Year, the professional fees paid or payable to Mazars for services
rendered are set out below:
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Fee paid/payable

et ENEA

RMB’000

AREFT

Audit services EET RIS 1,647
Non-audit services for interim report RS — R B S 457
Total il 2,104

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming, the sole company secretary of the Company,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the Year, Mr. Ge Junming has undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

AGM(s) provide opportunity for Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman, the chairmen of the
Board Committees will attend AGM to answer Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor will also attend AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at www.uhighl.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’'s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at Shareholders’

meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each Shareholders’ meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals

Under the Articles of Association, any two or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meeting, and any one Shareholder
which is a recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meeting, can require an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM") to be called and put forward proposals
at the meeting. The procedures for Shareholders to convene and
put forward proposals at an EGM are stated as follows:

(1) The requisitionist(s) should sign a written request stating the
objects of the meeting to be convened, and deposit the same
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong situated at 2404, 24th Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des
Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of
the company secretary.

(2) Where, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Directors do not proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board, provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERER®RE

BHEBRRFHIAEREZER

REBAGSREAR - AARMBIIALRNEZ
ZXRABHFE N PRAR R B A (K
BERARFRRERREG LRENERN) T2
—(M0)HBR - URER—EZRNEZE
KEHRFAETNDRARRBERA(HE
RARBBRRAE LIRENEN) +02—
(110)BER (B — R A A E AT (RERE
A)) - BEEERARBRERAZ ([ RER
BRAE DERNE LRREER - RRARK
REAGRIREERNEFWT

(1) BRABEZEEFRK(EFRIAEHA
RENETE@/RSFE) WEREARQA
REBNEEZEEME - it BEE
IR 1B B 28 HR 1958 IR BROK [E 24122404
= BEBRQEWE -

(2 FHEEEERZAEF_t—HA &
FERMERFARBRENKRE
BRABFARRBEFAIT2EIRERE
50%A EVEMIRH B A IREEROE

SARASNERNDAERBRRK
g ERLEASTAERNTAARETF
REZERAMEF=EAREHRA
- M RKAREFTE TR RBRERA
EMELNSIEKRANEHARRBRGEK
AT I

MREREASEEENFE  AREAT
@k Er AR -

ABEEBREEZERERLAT FERE2020/21 91



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

Enquiries to the Board MEESRIER

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries aboutthe MREMA M EESREEEAL NS
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the principal ' A BB EANTEEZ AR ARNES
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 2404, 24th K EZ & XM (I AHBFIREE B
Floor, World- Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, A 1958 & Bk K E241E2404= ) 8 & & &

Hong Kong or to email address: ir@uhi-group.com. ir@uhi-group.com °

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEREEXH

During the Year, there is no significant change in constitutional ZAFE @ AR RNBESVFBEEMEANE
documents of the Company. 2y o
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESkeREERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. JIN Dongtao (£33 %), aged 52, was appointed as the Chairman
and an executive Director on 12 March 2012 and the chief executive
officer of the Company on 23 March 2017. Mr. Jin has resigned
from being the chief executive officer with effect from 1 August
2021. Mr. Jin is one of the co-founders of the Group and has been
the Chairman since its inception in June 1998. He has substantial
experience in the pharmaceutical retail and distribution sector
and is responsible for setting the strategic vision, direction and
goals of the Group.

Mr. Jin has over 27 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry and marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010-September 2014: chairman of the Heilongjiang Alliance
of Pharmaceutical Retailers (2821 %[5 8)

e 2012 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (77 B 28 Z£¥) & &)

Education:

e July 1991: graduated from Jiamusi United Workers University
(EEARENEE S B T KER)

e December 2010: obtained a Master's degree in Business
Administration in a programme run by United Business
Institutes

Mr. Jin received the National Enterprise Management Specialist
Award by the China National Management Specialist Centre (F
EAREMBEASZHEZEAZREIF L) in 2006. He is qualified as a
practising pharmacist in China. He has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Mr. Jin Dongtao is the elder brother of Mr. Jin Dongkun, an
executive Director and vice chairman of the Board.
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Mr. JIN Dongkun (£RE), aged 48, was appointed as the vice
chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 12 March
2012. He is one of the co-founders of the Group and has served
as business manager, general manager and vice president of
the Group since June 1998. He is responsible for overseeing the
Group's external affairs and relationships.

Mr. Jin Dongkun has over 22 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical distribution industry and in marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010 - September 2014: vice chairman of the Heilongjiang
Alliance of Pharmaceutical Retailers (B 58T )55 B8)

e November 2014 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (F B %8 #2¥) & 175 =)

Education:

e December 1994: graduated from Harbin Engineering University
(Fa /& T2 K2) with a major in Electric Technology

e July2013: obtained a Master's degree in Business Management
in a programme run by the Scandinavian Art and Business
Institute

Mr. Jin Dongkun is qualified as a practising pharmacist and a senior

economist in China. He has not held any directorships in any other

publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Mr. Jin Dongkun is Mr. Jin Dongtao’s brother.

94 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020/21

ERERE B8R R_FT——F=A+=
FEZEREZSRETRFERATES -8R
AEBWEIMAZ— B—ANANFRAR

EAAEBEBHER  BEERERE -t
BEREBAREEOEINERRBE -
SHREALREDNENEBES BTLR
GHAEER o

At 455

e “T-TEE-T-MFAA: BT

BEMERIEER

s —TME+—AES: PEBEYE
mealex
HEER

e —HMNIEFE+=ZR:EEXEWRRELE
AEEFHRIMTEZE

o T —=—FtH: BESHHTMEDTRE

& [ (Scandinavian Art and Business

Institute) 2R Y T p4 & 12 sr 2 A8 T 8347

/}E%E‘u?ﬁiiﬁqﬂ B R BERIEE R K B
BABEENER - MBE=FA » I ARHE
T_ﬂ{ﬂﬁﬁﬂim AR E B o



Mr. CHU Chuanfu (#1JI| &), aged 51, is the chief operation officer
of the Group and has been appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer, with effect from 1 August 2021.
He joined the Group in 1999.

Other experience:

e 1993 -2005: Qigihar Second Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B 75 g
% — R HR A A)) with the last position held as Department
Head of Administration

e 2006 - 2010: Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical
Distribution Co., Ltd. (R2EIE &K EELKEER AR
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with the last
position held as Deputy General Manager of the Administration

Department
Education:

e 1993: graduated from the Harbin University of Civil Engineering
and Architecture* (WBER/BEZE T2 2Pt), China with a major
in coal chemical engineering

e  2013: graduated from Scandinavian Art and Business Institute,
Finland through distance learning with a Master of Business
Administration

Mr. Chu has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.
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Mr. ZHAO Zehua (#E%), aged 53, was appointed as the general
manager of finance of the Group in October 2011 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 16 June 2015. He joined the
Group in January 2005 as financial controller and was promoted to
his current position in October 2011. He is responsible for financial
control and management. He has over 32 years of experience
in financial management, with particular expertise in financial
accounting, treasury and internal control.

Other experience:

e August 1989 — May 2001: head of finance at Hebei Chengde
Tianyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (At & AERREEEF R
NG

e June 2001
general manager of Hebei Chengde Tianyuan Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. (AL EAERREZFR Q7))

— December 2004: manager of finance and deputy

e January 2003 - December 2004: manager of finance and

deputy general manager of Chengde Pharmaceutical Group
Liuhe Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R{EZE# £ E NS REFREE
{Ea/NCT))

Education:

e July 1992: graduated from Hebei Radio and Television
University (AIlLEEER KZE) with a major in Finance and
Accounting

Mr. Zhao is a qualified accountant in China. He has not held any

directorships in any other publicly listed companies over the past
three years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sheung Hing (BB ), aged 73, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a senior economist of People’s Bank of China with
many years of experience in foreign exchange management and
management of pharmaceutical companies and listed companies.

Other experience:

e 1982 — 1985: in charge of the foreign affairs of Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Jt R EE%242/) F]) and stores for
new drugs and specific drugs

e 1986 — 1995: deputy administrative officer of Non-trade
Department and Inspection Department of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange (BIRIMEE 2 F)

Directorships:

e 1995 - 2002: assistant to the general manager and assistant
to board chairman of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (3K
LR (I AR) B R A7), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01189)

e 2003 - 2005: assistant to board chairman of Heng Fai
Enterprises Limited ({E#E 1t 3 E A& B IR A F]) (now known as ZH
International Holdings Ltd. IE1E BIFX1EAR B R A7), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00185)

e 2005 - 2013: independent non-executive director of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (Bl K& BIRIZRBR A
A]) (formerly known as China Outdoor Media Group Limited
PRI FIMEREEB AR AR]), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00254)

Education:

e 1982: graduated from the formerly known as School of
Economics of Peking University (16487 E2FT) (now known
as Capital University of Economics and Business B #B4&E &
2 KX2) with a major in Trading Economics

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.
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Ms. CHIANG Su Hui Susie (I %), aged 74, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013. Ms.
Chiang has over 29 years of experience in governmental affairs,
treasury and cross-straits relations.

Other experience:

e December 1991 — March 1994:
Government Information Office of the Executive Yuan of
Taiwan (B /27TBPT#EB)

the representative of

e March 1994 — December 2004: in charge of the Taiwanese
Kwang-hwa Information and Culture Centre (& /& £ ZEX B XX

e )

e April 2002: established the C S Forum (&F)L#@18) and the C S
Corp. Consultancy Limited (/LB AR A A) in Hong Kong
with a goal of promoting cross-straits economic and trade
communications

Current positions:

e member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Cultural Co-operation
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

EEFRBAEGXILAERZES)

e chairwoman of the C S Culture Foundation (/I X/t mE
&)

e chairwoman of the C S Corp. Consultancy Limited (&) &
BRAT])

e chairwoman of the C S Finance & Investment Company

Limited (B I &R EEEBRAR)

e honourary chairwoman of the Taiwan Business Association
(Hong Kong) Limited (B8 & & TEHe)

Education:

e July 1969: graduated from the Taiwan National Chung Hsing
University (& /2 B3/ H K E) with a major in laws

Ms. Chiang has not held any directorships in any other publicly
listed companies over the past three years.
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Mr. ZOU Haiyan (SBiE#E),
independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2017. Mr. Zou has

aged 56, was appointed as an

over 34 years of experience in the financial services industry. He
has been a training instructor and guest lecturer of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong, International
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong, HongKong
Chinese Accountants Association, continuing education of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics Institute, Hainan
Local Taxation Bureau, Huangshan Local Taxation Bureau, Qingdao
Provincial SAT Office and Shenzhen Municipal SAT Office; and

an associate professor of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Other experience:

e July 2001 — November 2003: certified public accountant of
Guangdong Kangyuan Certified Public Accountants (B3 5
TTEETRNEHPR)

e December 2003 — August 2009: chief partner of Guangdong
Gaowick Certified Public Accountants (B3 =13 & 51 Ah E 75 F)

e March 2001 — August 2018: managing director of China Tax
and Business Consultants Company Limited (4 B%: 75 75
BRI AR LA

overlapping of business)

) (the company ceased business due to the
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Current positions:

®* managing director of Kaowick Listing and Financial Services

Company Limited (i _Em @& RS AR Q7]

e partner of Shenzhen Guangshen Certified Public Accountants

/mf)llf_/ﬁk‘;ﬁrﬁﬂi%?}&ﬁﬁ

e independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Asia
Electricity Co., Ltd.,
Exchange and Quotations in China (ZIIZaME
al)

a company listed on National Equities

B BERRA

e independent non-executive director and members of the
audit committee of Anchorstone Holdings Limited (&A%
BRRA

Exchange

Al), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Education:

e July 1985: graduated from Guangdong Provincial Finance
School in Taxation (B3R & #IHER)

e January 2015: graduated from University of Electronic Science

and Technology in Human Resources Management (B F %
RER)

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zou has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Junming (8% 8), aged 53, was appointed as a company
secretary of the Company on 18 November 2013 and is currently
the sole company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1998. Mr. Ge has worked in various other capacities in the Group,
including as an accountant, head of the planning department,
chief secretary to the Chairman, head of the legal department,
general secretary and director in various members in the Group.

Other experience:

e August 1988 — May 1994: a materials accountant, costs
accountant and head accountant of Jiamusi CNC Machine

Tools Factory (7K HTSA1ZEH4 R J4R)

e June 1994 — August 1995: head accountant of Jiamusi Import
and Export Wood Products Company (FE7RHf 3 H QD AR&L ;A
al)

e September 1995 — August 1996: chief of finance at Jiamusi
Forging Equipment Factory (fFE/RKHT #5335 & HR)

e September 1996 — April 1998: financial inspector at Jiamusi
Marketing Limited Company of the Sanzu Group (Z#k&E
ERETEHAR DA
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Education:

e July 1988: obtained a Secondary Professional Degree in
Financial Accounting from Heilongjiang School of Machinery

Manufacturing (B B/ T RIE2K)

e July 1993: graduated from the School of Economics at
Peking University (At R AR 24 2 Fx) with a major in Financial

Accounting, by way of distance learning

e December 2016: graduated and obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Business Management (Business Administration) from
Peking University (JE R AE2) by way of self-study

e December 2019: graduated from South China Agricultural
University (Z2F &3 K2 with Major in Regional Economic
Development and Management by way of self-study

Mr. Ge is also a qualified senior accountant, senior planner,
pharmacist and nutritionist in China. Mr. Ge is a Certified Internal

Auditor, and has obtained qualification of practice in securities
and funds.

Mr. Ge received the National Enterprise Management Specialist
Award by the China National Management Specialist Centre
(PEARKMBEAEIHZEAZ REH L) in 2005.

Mr. Ge has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BEN R S

mazars

To the members of
Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Universal
Health International Group Holding Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 117
to 262, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30
June 2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2021, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

ABEEBREEZERERLAT FERE2020/21

MAazARS CPA LIMITED
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42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of mostsignificance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

104 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2020/21

ERNER
BMERIEER B HEFERRESRM
MCEIBREET2ER]) ([EBREF TR )17
FaT o BMEZSER TRENE TEARR
S ZE AT EET A R EASERE (T
ZEREE— SR - RIBRBE SRR
BTEESeRMAAKEESFTMBEESTR)
(AT HHEETE ] BMBIR B
E - WERRERETFAETHEMBERE -
BMBEE - BPIFTESHENREERTER
HEWARMNETE RIRMHER -

HAEETSER
FREASFHAEREBRFNERHE - RS
HAFEEHUMBHRRNEARRERNS
I8 o FURRARMEBFBEA M TRE
RHEERRETRE  MAkM T EHiES
SREHEBNER



Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI

HMRETSE

Impairment assessment of certain intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets allocated to the
cash-generating units of retail and distribution businesses

Refer to notes 7, 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The carrying value of certain intangible assets, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (together the “Non-current Assets”)
allocated to the cash-generating units of the Group's retail and
distribution businesses as at 30 June 2021 was approximately
RMBNil, RMB44,695,000 and RMB12,467,000 respectively.

The Group had reported a continued loss in the current year.
Management considered this as an impairment indicator on the
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets and has performed an impairment assessment on these
assets as at 30 June 2021 to determine their recoverable amount.
Management has performed impairment tests with reference to a
valuation performed by an independent and qualified professional
valuer and the conclusion is based on the estimation of the
recoverable amounts of the respective cash-generating units to
which the respective Non-current Assets relate using the value-
in-use calculation.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the amounts involved and use of judgements and
estimates in assessing the impairment of the assets. These key
estimates include forecasted gross margins, forecasted growth
rates and discount rates adopted in the value-in-use calculations
based on discounted cash flow model.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMETNAEEERETER

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key

procedures:

a)

106

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer;

We performed procedures to understand the key processes
and controls relating to the assessment of the recoverable
amounts of CGUs supported by value-in-use calculations
based on discounted cash flow model;

We compared the cash flow projections used in value-
in-use calculations to the financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period;

We compared the future growth rates beyond the five-year
period used by management against the long-term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the respective CGUs
operate based on the available data from the market;

We evaluated the achievability of budgeted gross margins
based on the Group’s past and current performance, the
management'’s business strategy and the expected market
development;

We evaluated the reasonableness of key parameters used
by the management and the valuer for calculating discount
rates, including the Group's cost of equity, gearing ratio and
cost of debt. Such parameters were benchmarked against
market available data;

We tested mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations used by the management and the valuer to

determine the recoverable amounts of CGUs; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI

HMRETSE

Impairment assessment of a logistics building included in
property, plant and equipment — Distribution segment

Refer to notes 4(c) and 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had a logistics building included
in the property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
RMB197 million located in Jiamusi, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

During the year, the Group had utilised certain areas of the
logistics building as warehouse for its distribution business and
continued to seek out its opportunities to develop the logistics
business. In view of the loss sustained by the distribution business
and the current low usage rate as warehousing for the distribution
segment, management considered that there were indicators of
impairment of the logistics building existed at 30 June 2021 and
performed an impairment assessment thereon.

Management performed an impairment assessment of the
logistic building with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer by using the fair
value less cost of disposal model and compared the carrying
amount of the logistics building to determine the amount of
impairment which should be recognised for the year. For the
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal, management
used the depreciated replacement cost method that reflects the
cost to a market participant to construct assets of comparable
utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence. Based on the results
of the impairment assessment, management concluded that the
recoverable amount of the logistics building was higher than its
carrying amount and no impairment was required.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the use of judgements and estimates in assessing
the impairment of this significant asset. These key estimates
include the estimated useful life and replacement costs adopted
in the depreciated replacement cost calculations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMETNAEEERETER

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key
procedures:

a) We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer;

b) We evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology used
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions applied in
the depreciated replacement cost calculations such as the
estimated useful life and replacement costs by referencing
to available market data;

c) We tested mathematical accuracy of the depreciated
replacement cost calculations used by the management and
the valuer to determine the recoverable amounts of the
logistics buildings; and

d) We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI

HMRETSE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate
Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group held 43.78% equity interest in an
associate, Jilin Jintian Universal Health Capsule Limited (“Jilin
Jintian”), with a carrying amount of RMB111.1 million (including
a goodwill with carrying amount of RMB32.4 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount of the investment in an associate. The
recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal, has been determined by the Group's
management with reference to a valuation report prepared by
an independent and qualified professional valuer using price-to-
earnings (P/E) multiple model, which is lower than the carrying
amount of the investment and therefore an impairment loss of
RMB210,373,000 was charged to profit or loss for the year ended
30 June 2021.

Impairment assessment of the significant carrying amount of
investment in an associate is highly judgmental and involves a
high degree of estimation uncertainty. We therefore identified
the impairment assessment as a key audit matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMETNAEEERETER

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key
procedures:

a) We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the valuer and management to
estimate the recoverable amount of the investment in an
associate;

b) We engaged an external valuer as auditor’s expert to assist
us in evaluating the reasonableness of the key inputs adopted
by the management and the valuer by comparing to entity-
specific information and market data;

c) We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer and the auditor’s expert; and

d) We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI

HMRETSE

Valuation of biological assets
Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group acquired a forest land use right and the wild ginsengs
planted in this forest land from an independent third party in June
2017. Upon completion of the acquisition, the forest land use
right and wild ginsengs are accounted for as land use right and
biological assets respectively. The wild ginsengs are measured
at fair value less costs to sell.

As at 30 June 2021, management estimated the fair value of
wild ginsengs which was revalued at RMB97.8 million based on a
valuation prepared by an independent and qualified professional
valuer which took into consideration of factors related to the
ginsengs as advised by ginsengs experts who were employed
by the valuer. A gain on change in fair value of RMB90,000 was
credited to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2021.

We have identified the valuation of the biological assets as a
key audit matter considering the significance of the balance
and the extent of management’s judgments and estimates used
for the assessment of fair value of biological assets. The most
significant assumptions and valuation parameters used in the
valuation include the estimated quantities, grade and the related
market prices of biological assets applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMETNAEEERETER

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key
procedures:

a) We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuer and the ginsengs experts;

b) We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the valuer and management to
estimate the fair value of the biological assets;

c) We engaged our own ginsengs expert to carry out physical
inspection of the wild ginsengs forest and assist us in
reviewing the reasonableness of the key assumptions and
unobservable inputs applied to the valuation model; and

d) We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the fair value measurement of the biological assets.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2020/21 annual report of the Company but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI
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BERARESEHHEMESAR - HMBERE
TE %’AT_Y_??@@/_ FEHRANGE
BT BREA M RE LRI BED

$&% °

mg St

BMHEHMBREANERLL MVREHME
B BT EHZEEMER ?‘i’%&ﬂﬁﬁt
E’]%Eﬁé uﬁﬂ °©

BARBRMBAHFUBERROEFT - RANE
ERMEEMER  EUBES  TEEM
EEREHEAHUBHRRIBMIERTBRE
R T RO BRFEEREBREUTFE
ERBERRAHIER - EXRRAERITHT
1E - MRKZMRREMESFEERERR

BPIRBEREZFE - EE E - T
RA MRS o

EENERERS
HEE

DBt SR ARNE

BERRIEZAREREBERMBREEL R
FR(RRRIDNBREREREEEMT S
MEHMBHRE  AHERSRESHTH
BROBE T FERRRFFRERMERH
BAREHE ﬁeﬁ%z_ﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁm*m HER -

ERBAUMHHRRE  EFAFMNE &
SERERENREN  YEERBRTHRE
HFEKEABNER  URERFERSE

REHER  RIESEER SREFR
HIFILEE  HPEEMERNBEATER
BERZEQRAREERE ESENUB®RS

ABEEBREEZERERLAT FERE2020/21 113



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BRI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we {EEEZEIZZEZ B 2/E@MEIEF « I E B
determine those matters that were of most significance in the S“EIEHAIAEHMBERENBIRAEE
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 2 @ EMEKBHEETHE - RIAEZEED
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe ¥REFRMMBLEIR @ RIEEEERTAFT
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation ZARFEEELEIE W HEHZKE RHIBER
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely T + FARGBFEHERMFEFBEBELEE
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be #EXKNEBEERBBEBEENLARFEZ © Fif
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences RETEERESHBERZEHE -

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited TERR(FR)EAMNEERBERLA
Certified Public Accountants BRI D
Hong Kong, 28 September 2021 58 —E-—FhA=1+)N\H

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent  H AARB I ZHBEMBENERTEEESA -
auditor’s report is:

Law Lai Ting 3§

Practising Certificate number: P07322 HMEBERS : P07322
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEERER

At 30 June 2021
RZZTZ—FA=1H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR FT ARBTFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB KB 241,611 340,821
Right-of-use assets EREEE 8 12,467 27,864
Intangible assets By &E 9 - 567
Investments in joint ventures SENERE 11 - 9,349
Investment in an associate BN aIE 12 111,139 318,301
Equity instruments designated BEABRLSBEGTA
as at fair value through other Hihira Wam o s
comprehensive income IA 13 9,265 15,474
Biological assets EYEE 14 97,752 97,662
Deferred income tax assets BEEATISTREE 15 - 5,203
Total non-current assets FREEELRE 472,234 815,241
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5N E bW IE 17 137,477 179,274
Income tax recoverable AL B AT IS FR 6,399 13,183
Inventories =8 18 273,916 310,858
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 19 34,724 45,229
Cash and cash equivalents B MREEEY 20 33,091 131,317
Total current assets REEEHAR 485,607 679,861
Total assets BEEHER 957,841 1,495,102
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the RATEE AELER
Company
Share capital A% A 21 24,833 24,833
Reserves (G 22 1,729,755 1,723,185
Accumulated loss ES (1,179,616) (504,220)
574,972 1,243,798
Non-controlling interests FEHE IR M 945 1,556
Total equity RS 575,917 1,245,354
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERER

At 30 June 2021
R-ZBEZ—FRA=1TH

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
KiaE AR FT ARMTFr
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kREBERE
Lease liabilities HEEE 8 - 3,930
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBEE - 3,930
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables E 5 R HA RN FIA 24 377,994 235,607
Lease liabilities HEAE 8 3,930 10,211
Total current liabilities REEEAE 381,924 245,818
Total liabilities =Rtk 381,924 249,748
Total equity and liabilities EnkAERRE 957,841 1,495,102
The notes on pages 125 to 262 are an integral part of these F125F2628B T A% E & 0wk

consolidated financial statements.

RAl D EE—FBD -

These consolidated financial statements on pages 117 to 262 were  # R EB117E22E N EHMBHRER =

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 September 2021 and signed on its behalf by

Jin Dongtao
ERE

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

=) ‘9% =) q&ﬁﬁ%
Year ended 30 June 2021
HE_ZT-—FA=1tHLFE

2021 2020
—E--F e S 3
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARHTT AREFT
Revenue Wz 5 1,185,168 1,510,126
Cost of sales HERK 2 (1,028,264) (1,321,626)
Gross profit EZFilped 156,904 188,500
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHHEY 26 (533,776) (617,318)
Administrative expenses THREX 26 (66,583) (75,305)
Impairment loss on goodwill and other intangible ~ H&EREMEREEREEE
assets 9,26 (313) (11,809)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% * FiE K& ERESE 7,26 (3.972) =
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEENESR 8,26 (3,893) =
Impairment loss on investment in an associate BEDARERERSE 12, 26 (210,373) =
Other income Hepl A 2 1,930
Other losses — net HipE1E — 55 25 (1,495) (533)
Change in fair value of biological assets EMEER BB 14 90 4,041
Operating loss KEFR (663,409) (510,494)
Finance income 153 ON 28 1,253 9,586
Finance costs TR A 28 (11,868) (2,198)
Finance (costs) income - net BIAS (A ) A — 538 28 (10,615) 7,388
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures AERERARBEESR 11 9 103
Share of post-tax results of an associate AMEEEARRHEES 12 3,211 10,777
3,220 10,880
Loss before income tax BRETEBRAIEE (670,804) (492,226)
Income tax expenses FrEHREY 29 (5,203) (1,245)
Loss for the year EEEE (676,007) (493,471)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aftaralaRk
Year ended 30 June 2021

(E- T —F A A=THILEE

2021 2020
:g:_$ — 7 —= E
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARETT AREFT
Other comprehensive loss HtGaEE
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss N ey By b
Fair value changes in equity instruments designated 3& E/’%TTZ/RﬁfE@ 1’)\31 iR e
as at fair value through other comprehensive WanmEm T A Z/&/’ﬂﬁﬁg
income £l 13 (5,066) (8,579)
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods
Release of other reserves upon deregistration of T SEMTE A Al & E L
subsidiaries 1,862 =
Currency translation differences IMEEEE 9,774 (4,712)
11,636 4,712
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year EEHMEE NS (FR) 6,570 (13,291)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERABRES (669,437) (506,762)
Loss attributable to: THI&F R
— Owners of the Company —ADAEEA (675,396) (491,405)
- Non-controlling interests — RS (611) (2,066)
(676,007) (493,471)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: THE A EEREERARE
— Owners of the Company . YNGIE PN (668,826) (504,696)
— Non-controlling interests — IR E S (611) (2,066)
(669,437) (506,762)
(Restated)
(4= &)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the FERDAREAERLEERESR
Company for the year (RMB cents) (ARES)
- Basic and diluted —EAREE 30 (174.83) (127.45)

The notes on pages 125 to 262 are an integral part of these $125F262E i A% E A M BB
consolidated financial statements. A DR —ED o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHERE R

Year ended 30 June 2021
HE-_ZT-_—F A=1+HLFE

Attributable to ovners of the Company

KAAEEARE
Fair value
reserve  Share-based Non-
Share  Capital ~ Statutory (non-~ compensation Other Accumulated controlling
Share capital ~ premium  reserves  reserves  recycling)  reserves  reserves loss Totl interests Total equity
MBERE

Bt BEEE  GARE  iRER  (TUER) ROEMEE  HbBR  ZiER At FEREE  REEE

RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBO0  RMBOO0  RMB0O0  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'00

ARBTE  ARETL ARBTR ARKTL ARBTR  ARKTL ARBTL  ARKTL ARBTIL  ARKTL  ARETR
(Note21) (Note 22(a) (Note 22(b) (Note 22(c) (Note 22(d)) (Note 22(e)  (Note 22(f)
Wzz)  (W22e)  (k2ap)  (Wdze)  (BE2W)  (WE2e) (R

Balance t 1 July 2020 H-B-%FLA-

i3 1833 1817387 (154447) 64,149 (9,865) 20,366 (16,405)  (504220) 1,243,798 155 1,245,354
Comprehensive loss BeEE
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - - - T3 (675.3%) (611 (676,007)

Other comprehensive loss EhGAEE
Fairvalue changes n equity nstruments 2 B2 BIERTA

designated as et fair value through other A EHE

comprehensive income (Note 13 HIAZAREE
- - - - (5,000) - - - (5,066) - (5,066)
Release of other reserve upon i i
de-registration of subsidaries  fhfE - - - - - - 1862 - 1862 - 1,862
Currency translaton differences EEEE - - - - - - 9,774 - 9,174 - 9174
Total other comprehensive loss HbsapBRaEE - - - - (5,086) - 11,63 - 6,570 - 6,570
Total comprehensive loss LopRaE - - - - (5,066) - 1163 (675,396  (668,826) (011 (669437)
Balance at 30 June 2021 R-B--ERA=TH
i 2833 1817387 (154,447) 04,149 (14931) 22,368 (4769 (1,179,616) 5714912 945 575917
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BOEREER

Year ended 30 June 2021
(E- T —F A A=THILEE

Attributdole to owners of the Company

RATEEARL
Fair value
resenve  Share-based Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory (non- compensation Accumulated controlling
Share capitel ~ premum resenves  reseves  recycling)  resemves Other reserves loss Totd  interests  Total equity
N EEGR

B BbER  RAEE  AehR  (FUER) ROEMBR  AbBR  ZHER At FAREE  ER4E
RVBOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO  RMBOO  RMBON  RMBON  RWBON  RMBON  RMBON
AEETL  AEKTn  ARETT AREFR ARETT ARETn ARETT  ARRTL ARETT ARETT  AREFR
Note21)  Note 226 Note 226)  Note 22)  (Note 22) ~(Note Z2)  (Note 22
(Wgz)  (Wzw) (BEzn)  (Bze) Wize)  (WEae) (i)

Balance at 1 July 2019 R-E-NELA-R

iffei 208 1791375 (154447) 04,149 (1,266) 31,946 (11,69 (12815 1730171 362 173193
Comprehensive loss GekE
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - - (9149 oA Q0 s
Other comprehensive loss Ly

Fair vlue changes in ety instuments BB/ BE:A
designated as at fai value through other A GEWARE

comprehensive income (Note 13) SIEZDABE
2a(h215) - - - - (8579 - - - 8579) - 8579

Currency transation diferences EERE - - - - - - (£712) - 4712 = 1)
Total other comprehensive loss AGAEEEE = = = = (8579 - @) - (13,09 = (13.91)
Total comprehensive loss bAFElE - - - - 8579) - @ny 91405 (5046%) (2066)  (506,762)
Transactions with owners in their capacity E}ﬁ‘ﬁ' AN fEAES

3 owners IWELE
Share issued under share option scheme R &2 ﬂﬁ’]

Notes 21a) RiH216) 1891 26012 - - - (9.560) - - 18,323 - 18303
Total transactions with owners intheir ~ EEE A (M EMEBER

capacity as owners A2EH)R548 1891 2012 = = = (9,580) = = 18303 - 18303
Balance at 30 June 2020

U833 1817381 (154447) 84,149 (9,865) 20,366 (16405 (04220 1243798 15%  1.453%

The notes on pages 125 to 262 are an integral part of these $125E2628 MM & /B 5% F & O B 1 WK
consolidated financial statements. A D EE—ED o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHEERER

Year ended 30 June 2021
HE-_ZT-_—F A=1+HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hta AR%FT AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRS
Cash used in operations KSR S 32 (113,312) (437,227)
Interest paid SENEAS (1,065) (2,017)
Bank charges paid BEfRITEA (122) (181)
Income tax refunded EREFE 6,784 31,099
Net cash used in operating activities EEEEFTARSTE (107,715) (408,326)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFES
Change in restricted cash PR HII3R & B Ep 10,505 (7,171)
Interest received BEF B 1,253 2,783
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BRE REET
plant and equipment 1§58 32(a) - 46
Proceeds from disposal of joint ventures H&& & AR FT{S 508 11 8,975 =
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE (21) =
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  HWER&E
equipment (1,903) (95,723)
Settlement of consideration receivables — JEUWR(B4EE 913 3,925
Net cash from (used in) investing WETEELS(FTH)RES
activities por-c] 19,722 (96,140)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Repayments of lease liabilities EHREERE 32(b) (10,211) (11,239)
Shares issued under share option RIS AR ST S 21 THY
scheme x5 - 18,323
Net cash (used in) from RETB(FTAEEES
financing activities THREE (10,211) 7,084
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
SHHETER

Year ended 30 June 2021

BE-T-—F A=t+AILFRE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARBFT AEBTIT
Net decrease in cash and Re M EEWRD
cash equivalents FEE (98,204) (497,382)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REHVIZRE KA EE
of the reporting period =87 131,317 628,525
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes JMBEXRLH) 2 & (22) 174
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the HEHARZIRERBEEE
reporting period BY 20 33,091 131,317

The notes on pages 125 to 262 are an integral part of these F125ZE262E MM AZSAMHIBRE
consolidated financial statements. TR EE)—FD o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
il e

Year ended 30 June 2021
BE_ZT_—FNA=1+HLEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the distribution and retail of drugs,
healthcare products and other pharmaceutical products in
the northeastern region of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC" or “Mainland China”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
March 2012, as an exempted company with limited liabilities
under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company's registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1- 1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 December
2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to both periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—REHR
ARERBEREEBRZERERAATEA
A MEMBAR(SERIAEE]) X
2HEREARKEAMBE([HE K HER
i) RAb R e FEEY) - RIEEMNME
B BEEMN D HRTER

AARIRZZE—=—F=A+-H1REH
SEHBERAVA(ZT—=FEIREH
EREAMKIREREERAR - K
NAEFEMFERA I APO Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman lIslands °

KA R - E—=F+_H+_H
ERBBMAERSMERAREIR LM o

SRR BREAEIN  ZFAHMBHRERTD
AARETET(TARETFTZS -
TEETHRME
mAEZEAMHMBRRAEANEIES

ATERRENTX - BRAREHRAIN - UF
BREMEZ HERNERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gl R el

Year ended 30 June 2021
BE_ZT-_—FA=1THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

126

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued by
International Accounting Standards Board and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity instruments designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and biological
assets which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires manage